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OUR VISION
To be a leader in the quality of our products and services.
To be a leader in profitability and return to our stakeholders.
To be the most responsible and preferred company in the region.

OUR MISSION
The purpose of Total Kenya is to market quality petroleum products and 
services to its customers responsibly and profitably in an innovative way to 
ensure that the public will come and continue to turn to TOTAL.

About Us

Total has been operating 
in Kenya for more than 
60 years and is a key 
part of Kenya’s essential 
services infrastructure. 
The Company is a market 
leader in the petroleum 
sector. Our facilities 
include more than 180 
service stations, 5 solely 
owned fuel depots, 3 
joint depots, 2 liquefied 
petroleum gas (LPG) 
filling plants, 1 lubricants 
blending plant, and 
6 aviation depots.
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TOTAL KENYA
Total Kenya Limited has been and remains a consistent leader
in Technical Innovation, Service Quality and Community Project 
Initiatives.
It is also one of the largest employers in Kenya with close to

400 direct employees and approximately 3,000 indirect employees.
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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

AGENDA

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To read the notice convening the meeting, table proxies 
and confirm the presence of a quorum.

2.  To confirm the minutes of the 61st Annual General 
Meeting held on 12 June 2015.

3.  To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements 
for the year ended 31 December 2015 together with the 
Chairman’s Statement and the reports of the Directors 
and the Auditor’s reports thereon.

4.  To declare a first and final dividend of KShs. 0.77 (2014; 
KShs. 0.70) per share in respect of the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015 payable to the holders of 
Ordinary Shares and Redeemable Preference Shares 
on record at the close of Business on 10 June 2016.

5.  To approve the Directors’ fees for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2015.

6.  To note that Messrs Ernst & Young LLP continue in office 
as Auditors of the Company in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 159 (2) of the Kenyan Companies 
Act (Cap 486) and to authorise the Directors to fix their 
remuneration for the ensuing financial year.

7. To discuss Any Other Business of which due notice has 
been given.

  

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

J L G MAONGA
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date: 16 May 2016

Note

1. In accordance with Section 298 of the Companies 
Act, 2015, a member entitled to attend and vote at 
this meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend, to 
speak and to vote on his or her behalf. A proxy need not 
be a member of the Company. 

 A Proxy Form may be obtained from the Company’s 
website www.total.co.ke, The Registered office of the 
Company, Regal Plaza, Limuru Road, Nairobi, P O Box 
30736 – 00100 GPO Nairobi, or from the offices of the 
Company’s Shares Registrars, Comprite Kenya Limited, 
Crescent Business Centre, 2nd Floor, Off Parklands 
Road, Nairobi.

 To be valid, a Form of Proxy must be duly completed 
by the member and must either be lodged with the 
Company Secretary, P O Box 73248 – 00200 Nairobi 
email: jmaonga@maongandonye.com or the Shares 
Registrars on the above address so as to be received 
by not later than 10.00 a.m. on 8 June 2016, failing 
which, it will be invalid. In the case of a corporate body, 
the proxy form must be executed under its common 
seal.

2. In accordance with Article 144(a) of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, a copy of the entire 
Annual Report and Accounts may be viewed at the ’s 
website at www.total.co.ke or a printed copy may be 
obtained from the Registered Office of the Company, 
Regal Plaza, Limuru Road, Nairobi, P O Box 30736 – 
00100 GPO Nairobi.

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 62nd Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at Safari Park Hotel, The Jambo 
Ball Room, Thika Road, Nairobi on Friday, 10 June 2016 at 10.00 a.m. to transact the following business:-
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS, HEAD OFFICE AND REGISTERED OFFICE 
Regal Plaza, Limuru Road
P. O. Box 30736–00100
Nairobi, Kenya

DIRECTORS
Jean-Christian Bergeron* (Non-executive) Chairman – Appointed on 15 September 2015
Jonathan Molapo** (Non-executive) Chairman - Resigned on 15 September 2015
Anne-Solange Renouard* (Executive) Managing Director – Appointed on 1 November 2015

(Alternate to Jean-Christian Bergeron  as Chairman)
Ada Eze*** (Executive) Managing Director - Resigned on 1 November 2015
Alice Mayaka (Non-executive) 
Aurore Delarue* (Non-executive)
Momar Nguer* (Non-executive) 
Premanand Dhoomon**** (Executive) Finance Director – Appointed on 1 November 2015

(Alternate to Anne-Solange Renouard)
Patrick Waechter* (Executive) Finance Director – Resigned on 11 June 2015

Maurice K’Anjejo (Executive) (Alternate to Momar Nguer and Aurore Delarue)
 
* French    |      ** South African       |      *** Nigerian |       **** Mauritian

ADVOCATES
Njoroge Regeru and 
Company
Arboretum Drive, Milimani
P.O. Box 46856-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Hamilton, Harrison & 
Matthews
1st Floor, Delta Office Suites 
Block A, Off Waiyaki Way 
Muthangari
P.O. Box 30333-00100 
Nairobi, Kenya

Mohammed Muigai 
Advocates
MM Chambers, 4th Floor
K-Rep Centre, Wood Avenue
Off Lenana Road, Kilimani
P.O. Box 613323-00200
Nairobi, Kenya  

Waweru Gatonye & Co.
Timau Plaza
Argwings Kodhek Rd, 
P.O. Box 55207 - 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

Musyimi & Co. Advocates
M’pulla House, 
Arboretum Drive
Off State House Road
P.O. Box 12502-00400
Nairobi, Kenya

Muthoga Gaturu & Co. 
Advocates
Bruce House, 7th Floor
Standard Street
P.O. Box 47614-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Waruhiu Kowade & Ng’ang’a 
Advocates
Taj Towers, 4th Floor, Wing B
Upperhill Road
P.O. Box 47122-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Kiarie Kariuki & Associates 
Advocates
Bemuda Plaza, 2nd Floor
Ngong Road
P.O. Box 13808-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Bowyer Mahihu & Co 
Advocates
Hokmah House
Kirichwa Lane
P.O. Box 4317-00200
Nairobi, Kenya 

Kibuchi & Co. Advocates
Finance House, 14th Floor
Loita Street
P.O. Box 28647-00200
Nairobi, Kenya

Muriu Mungai & Co. 
Advocates
MMC Arches, Ground Floor
Spring Valley Crescent
P.O. Box 75362-00200
Nairobi, Kenya

Mwaniki Gitau & Co. 
Advocates
Town House, 8th Floor
Kaunda Street
P.O. Box 15816-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

SECRETARY 
J L G Maonga
Certified Public Secretary 
(Kenya)
Jadala Place, 3rd Floor
P.O. Box 73248-00200
Nairobi, Kenya

REGISTRARS
Comprite Kenya Limited
Crescent Business Centre
2nd Floor
P.O. Box 63428-00619
Nairobi, Kenya

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Citibank NA
Citibank House 
Upper Hill Road
P.O. Box 30711-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Standard Chartered Bank 
Kenya Limited
Chiromo, 48 Westlands Road
Nairobi, Kenya

Barclays Bank of Kenya 
Limited
4th Floor, 
The Westend Building
Off Waiyaki Way, Westlands
P. O. Box 46661-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Bank of Africa Kenya Limited
8th Floor, International House
Mama Ngina Street
P.O. Box 69562 - 00400
Nairobi, Kenya

CfC Stanbic Bank Limited
CfC Stanbic Center 
Chiromo Road
P. O. Box 30550-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Kenya Commercial Bank 
Limited
Corporate Services 
Moi Avenue
P.O. Box 30081-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

The Co-operative Bank of 
Kenya Limited
Co-operative House
Haile Selassie Avenue 
P.O. Box 48231-00100
Nairobi, Kenya

Commercial Bank of Africa 
Limited
Mara and Ragati Roads 
Upper Hill
P.O. Box 30437-00100
Nairobi, Kenya 

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young LLP
Kenya Re Towers 
Off Ragati Road
P. O. Box 44286 - 00100
Nairobi, Kenya
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors submit their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 
2015, which show the state of the affairs of Total Kenya Limited (“The Company”).

1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The principal activity of The Company is the marketing and sale of petroleum products.

2. FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The results for the year are as follows:

 2015  2014
	 KShs	‘000		 KShs	‘000
  
Profit before tax 2,618,696 2,276,005
Tax charge (1,003,693)   (851,917)
  
Profit for the year  1,615,003   1,424,088

3. DIVIDENDS

Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Annual General meeting, the directors recommend payment of a first 
and final dividend of KShs. 0.77 (2014: KShs. 0.70) per ordinary share equivalent to a total sum of KShs. 485 million (2014: 
KShs. 441 million).

4. DIRECTORS

The directors who served during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page 3.
 
5. AUDITORS

The Company’s auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, have expressed their willingness to continue in office in accordance with 
Section 159(2) of the Kenyan Companies Act.
 
By Order of the Board 

Secretary

30 March 2016
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Kenyan Companies Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year, which give a 
true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of its operating 
results for that year.  It also requires the directors to ensure that the Company keeps proper accounting records which 
disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Company.  They are also responsible for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company.  

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate 
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Kenyan Companies Act.  The directors are of the opinion 
that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the Company and of its operating 
results.  The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records which may be relied upon in 
the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going concern for at least 
the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Director

Director

30 March 2016
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Jean-Christian BERGERON

Mr. Bergeron, aged 50, has over 25 years of experience in sales and 
marketing. He holds a Business School Degree from Audencia, France. 
Jean-Christian Bergeron joined Total in 1990 where he served in various 
capacities in Retail Sales, Project Management and Business Strategy. 
In addition to various business responsibilities in France and Europe, 
he also served in Pakistan between 2000 and 2003 and  in Cameroon 
as Managing Director from 2006 to 2009. In 2013, he was appointed as 
Executive Vice President for Retail, a position he held until 2015 when 
he was appointed to his current position as Executive Vice President for 
East & Central Africa.

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Anne-Solange RENOUARD

Anne-Solange Renouard, aged 44, is a graduate of ESSEC Business School in France 
and  Institute of Political Studies of Paris, France. She joined the Total Group in 1996 
and has worked in different positions in Logistics, Audit, Strategy, Management 
Control and Marketing. She became Managing Director of Total Mauritius in 2012, a 
position she held until November 2015 when she was appointed Managing Director, 
Total Kenya.

Momar NGUER

Mr. Momar Nguer, aged 60,  is a graduate of ESSEC Business School, France. His 
career started in 1982 in Hewlett Packard France’s Finance Department. He joined 
Total in 1984, where he has served in various positions. After a stint at Total Africa’s 
headquarters, he was named Vice President, Marketing, at Total Senegal in 1985. 
Returning to Paris headquarters in 1991, he was appointed Vice President, Retail 
Network and Consumers at Total Africa. In 1995, he became Chief Executive Officer, 
Total Cameroon and was subsequently named Chief Executive Officer of Total Kenya 
in 1997. In the year  2000, he took the position of Executive Vice President, Total 
East Africa & Indian Ocean, a position he held until 2007 when he was appointed 
Vice President, Aviation fuel. In December 2011, Momar Nguer was appointed to the 
position of Senior Vice President, Africa/Middle East. In April 2016, Momar Nguer 
was appointed to his current position as President, Marketing and Services. He is a 
member of the Executive Committee.

 Alice MAYAKA 

Mrs. Alice K. Mayaka, CBS, OGW, aged 64 holds a BEd. (Sc) from the University 
of Nairobi, Postgraduate Diploma in Curriculum Development from Kenyatta 
University and MSc. (HRD) from the University of Manchester, UK. In 1997, she 
was appointed an Assistant Director, Directorate of Personnel Management where 
she rose through the ranks to become Deputy Director before her appointment 
as Permanent Secretary in what used to be known as the Ministry of Heritage 
and Culture. Alice is also a Council Member at the University of Eldoret. She was 
appointed to the Total Kenya Board in October 2010. 
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Premanand DHOOMON

Premanand Dhoomon, aged 52, holds an ACCA certification and is also an ACCA 
fellow. He joined Esso Mauritius Limited in 1992 and in 2005, following the take-over 
of the Esso activities by Total Mauritius, he was appointed as Finance Manager. In 
2009 he was appointed as a Group Corporate Auditor at Holding level. In 2012, Mr. 
Dhoomon was appointed as the Marketing & Services Fraud Risk Coordinator, a 
position he held until his appointment  as Finance Director of Total Kenya Limited in 
May 2015.

Aurore DELARUE 

Ms. Aurore Delarue, aged 40, is a graduate of Ecole Supérieure des Sciences 
Economiques et Commerciales - ESSEC Business School, Paris. She joined the Total 
Group in 1999  where she held different positions in the Finance Division in Paris. In 
2005, she joined the Trading and Shipping Division as Internal Controller and in 2008 
was appointed as Financial Control General Manager. In 2013, she moved back to 
Finance Division where she handled Corporate and Project Finance for Marketing and 
Services subsidiaries in Africa and Middle East area.

Daniel MAYIEKA 

Mr. Daniel Minda Mayieka, aged 45, holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree from 
the University of Nairobi and has completed post graduate studies in Strategy 
and Strategic Management. He has 17 years experience in the Oil Industry having 
served in various capacities that include sales & marketing, marketing support and 
customer service among others. Before being appointed Specialties Manager in 
2009, he was responsible for all commercial activities of Chevron in East Africa 
encompassing the countries of Kenya, Uganda and Tanzania. Currently, Mr. Mayieka 
works for the Group Audit in Paris.

J.L.G MAONGA 

Mr. Maonga, aged 55, has a B A Degree from University of Nairobi and is a Certified 
Public Secretary. He is a member of the Institute of Certified Public Secretaries of 
Kenya and has over 20 years experience in Company Secretarial and Registration 
Services. He was appointed Company Secretary on February 1, 1999.

Maurice K’Anjejo 

Mr. Maurice Odhiambo K’Anjejo, aged 58, holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree 
(Accounting) from the University of Nairobi. He started his career in Internal Audit 
at TPS Serena group upon graduation in 1983 before joining Total Kenya Limited 
in 1985 as Management Accountant. He has since held various responsibilities, 
including being Treasury Manager, Chief Accountant and Human Resource and 
Administration Manager. He was appointed the Corporate Affairs Manager in 2003, 
a post he holds to date.



Total Kenya Limited 
Annual Report and Financial Statements 20158

COMPANY PROFILE

CORPORATE STATUS

Total Kenya Limited is part of the Total Group. Total is a global integrated energy 
producer and provider, a leading international oil and gas company, and the world’s 
second-ranked solar energy operator with SunPower. The Group is a sector leader 
in Africa with an estimated 18% of market share. Total is deeply rooted in Kenya’s 
economy and society, with long-term investments amounting to many billions of 
shillings. Total has been operating in Kenya for more than 60 years. Total Kenya was 
the first oil Company to be quoted on the Nairobi Securities Exchange and is a key 
part of Kenya’s essential services infrastructure. It is one of Kenya’s largest revenue 
generators.

MAINSTREAM PRODUCTS

Mainstream fuel products include automotive gasoline  
(petrol)  and gasoil (diesel), Liquefied Petroleum Gas 
(LPG), dual-purpose kerosene (DPK, both Illuminating 
kerosene and Jet  A1),  aviation fuel (Avgas), industrial diesel 
and fuel oil. The range of lubricants includes high performance engine and transmission 
oils and greases for all applications in automotive and industrial machinery of all kinds.

The Company also markets car care products such as engine coolants, distilled 
water, brake fluids, cleaning  compounds, auto shampoos, dash board cleaners, air 
fresheners and is now actively involved in the provision of clean energy solutions with 
the revolutionary solar lanterns and solar home systems to power domestic devices.

LOGISTICS AND FACILITIES

All of Total’s facilities conform to international standards, especially in relation to 
personnel, customer, environmental and equipment safety, through both built-in 
designs, the integrity of equipment, and strict operational codes. A lot of attention is 
paid to industrial safety with the key objective being the achievement of zero accidents 
in all facilities.

These systems are enforced by requirement, reinforced by training, and maintained by 
constant monitoring and special inspection. All our facilities have received certification 
for conformity with high standards of quality, safety and environmental protection.

OUR SERVICE STATIONS

TOTAL stations offer a wide and ever-increasing range of value added services all 
delivered to the highest quality standards. All TOTAL stations are both an oasis of 
services for travellers and an integral part of their local community. In 2015, Total Kenya 
opened 8 new Stations, which, coupled with rationalization of the existing outlets, 
increased our network to 180 Service Stations. The existing network is currently 
undergoing rebranding to the new environmentally friendly colours and to reflect the 
wide range of service offering that includes shops, food corners, restaurants, service 
bays, car wash, banking facilities and an array of other value-add services.

CORE BUSINESS

Total Kenya’s core business is the marketing and distribution of petroleum products 
and  related services to industry, transport, commercial and domestic users 
throughout Kenya.
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COMPANY PROFILE

LIQUEFIED PETROLEUM GAS (LPG)

The Totalgaz range is the leading LPG brand in Kenya. Total Kenya was the first to 
introduce the lower-cost 6kg cooking / lighting unit under the brand name of TOTAL 
MEKO, revolutionizing cooking and lighting. The ultra-modern filling and storage 
plant in Nairobi serves the growing LPG demand locally and in the region. The TOTAL 
Maskani concept, another first, aims to bring our LPG products even closer to our 
customers.

LUBRICANTS

Total is the leading supplier of lubricants in Kenya. Through continued research 
and product development, Total continues to introduce high quality lubricants to 
meet the ever growing consumer needs. Our modern lubricants blending plant in 
Mombasa serves the Kenya market and the entire Eastern Africa region. Totals’ Test 
Diagnostics Lubricants Laboratory in Nairobi offers oil analysis services to our bulk 
customers for quality assurance.

TOTAL BON VOYAGE FUEL CARD

Non-cash payment solutions have become universal currency. The TOTAL BON 
VOYAGE card is the premier fuel card in Kenya. It is also the first to introduce 
the safer chip-based SMART technology in this market. As a fleet management 
solution, the TOTAL BON VOYAGE fuel card’s recent technological improvements 
have introduced new features such as vehicle tagging, remote activation and real 
time limit adjustments among other benefits.

SOLAR

The TOTAL SOLA lanterns have greatly improved the quality of life for Kenyans with 
no access to electricity and are also a handy companion during power outages. Total 
Kenya has expanded its range that now includes; S300, S20, S2 and the D30 solar 
home system, all of which are available at TOTAL service stations and other authorised 
distributor outlets countrywide.
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INTRODUCTION

Corporate Governance (CG) is the process by which companies 
are directed, controlled and held to account. CG standards are 
set to improve value to our stakeholders, by ensuring companies 
are responsibly structured and operated, are transparent and 
accountable in their conduct, and deliver accurate financial 
information.

Total Kenya Limited, through its Group and Company codes 
of conduct, complies with the highest CG standards, both 
nationally and internationally. CG standards and performance 
are regularly reviewed, to ensure the company is always up-to-
date in this dynamic field, and strictly compliant.   

Total Kenya rejects fraud and corruption in all its forms and 
has a robust compliance policy. The Company has an Ethics 
Officer as well as a Compliance Officer with specific mandates 
to spearhead efforts towards mitigating compliance risk both 
internally and with third parties with direct dealings with the 
Company. Total Kenya has put in place specific guidelines in 
relation to whistle blowing, creating awareness and enforcing 
compliance. The Company also conducts both e-learning as 
well as classroom training targeting all employees. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors are appointed by the shareholders on a three-year 
term. They may stand for re-election. The current composition 
of the Board is given on page 3 of this report. Implementation 
of the Board’s directives is delegated through a Management 
Committee, which comprises all Heads of Departments and 
Board Audit Committee. The Management structure has a 
clear framework and is governed by precise organisational 
procedures, in which all staff is specifically trained and which 
have built-in checks and controls.

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Board Audit Committee comprises of at least three 
directors and is headed by an independent, non-executive 
director. In selecting the members of the Committee, the Board 
pays particular attention to their financial and accounting 
qualifications and experience. During the year 2015, members 
of the committee were:

Chairman  Alice Mayaka - Independent Director
Member  Premanand Dhoomon - Finance Director
Member  Maurice K’Anjejo - Corporate Affairs Manager 

The principal responsibilities of this committee include reviewing 
financial reports, internal audit reports, management letters 
and other information it orders to be tabled. The committee 
holds at least three formal meetings each year, which are also 
attended by the external auditors when discussing accounts 
of the Company. It may also meet with the Managing Director, 
perform inspections and interview managers of the company at 
any time deemed appropriate or necessary.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

This committee, comprising the Managing Director and all 
the Heads of Departments, meets every fortnight to review 
performance, discuss issues, map out on-going operational 
strategies, and optimise co-ordination of all the Company’s 
business processes. It serves as a channel for communication 
and feedback on issues that affect the business and 
performance of the Company in the short to medium term.

TENDER COMMITTEE

This Committee, focused on monitoring and evaluation of 
procurement policies, comprises the following people:

Finance Director Chairman
Corporate Affairs Manager  Secretary and Member
Operations Manager Member
HSSEQ Manager Member
HR & Administration Manager Member and Alternate Secretary
Marketing Manager Member

They ensure all tenders are conducted in an open and unbiased 
manner, in compliance with the laid down procedures. The 
Committee ensures the Company’s procurement processes are 
fully complied with and is independent of any interference.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS

The company provides timely and appropriate information to 
shareholders through publication of periodic accounts and 
the Annual Report and holds an Annual General Meeting. 
Shareholders are also advised of all important events that 
impact the Company’s operation.

RELATIONS WITH EMPLOYEES

Key activities include regular staff communication meetings, 
team building processes, performance evaluation and training, 
career management, safety briefs, regular staff communication 
bulletins (Flash), electronic mail, blog and a quarterly newsletter. 
In addition to these mechanisms, the Company encourages 
dialogue and warm relations as part of the working culture of 
every employee.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Total Kenya regards CSR as a fundamental and priority 
investment in terms of focus, time and resource allocation in 
both its core business operations and external programmes. 
The translation of these principles into practice is amplified in 
the Corporate Social Responsibility section of this document. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Total Kenya states that social responsibility is “built-in” to its 
business, not just “bolted-on”. It pledges commitment to CSR 
that matches its commitment to commercial activities. 

The broad CSR portfolio embraces key pillars of 
entrepreneurship, road safety, environment, culture, health, 
education and professional/economic development. In 2015, 
approximately 5% of the Company’s operating income was 
spent on CSR activities. 

All the programmes are long term and based above all on the 
principles of sustainable outcomes.

The scale of our actions directly involves millions of people and 
indirectly impacts every Kenyan, in every part of the country.

OVERVIEW

ENVIRONMENT 

The TOTAL Eco Challenge is a key activity for Total Kenya and it 
recognizes tree planting champions every year. These champions are; 
individuals, farmers, community groups, clubs, institutions of learning, 
businesses and industry of every size and kind, everywhere in Kenya. 
The TOTAL Eco Challenge programme whose slogan is “Miti ni Mali!  
Miti Tosha!“ has grown to become the biggest tree planting campaign 
in Kenya, embracing more than 5,000 independent projects, involving 
millions of Kenyans and planting hundreds of millions of trees.

A TOTAL Tree Conference is organized through the TOTAL Eco Challenge 
programme in partnership with the Kenya Forest Service and brings 
together small and large scale commercial tree farmers, environmental 
scientists, environmental scholars, Goverment agencies, universities, 
NGOs and other stakeholders to promote and facilitate tree planting 
projects. The conference aims to promote stakeholder participation in 
environmental conservation issues and influence positive policy change. 

ENTREPRENEURSHIP

Total is committed to ensuring that its activities create value and 
opportunities for local communities to spur economic growth.  Total 
Kenya launched “The Startupper of the Year by Total” Challenge in 2015, 
an initiative by the Group in 34 African countries to motivate and support 
young entrepreneurs with the aim of promoting social and economic 
development on the continent.  

Through the Young Dealer scheme, Total gives a life-changing chance to 
young Kenyans through special capital cost support for station dealership 
while the entrepreneurs gain experience and stand-alone financial 
strength. The company finances the working capital  of  the  station  
while the young  dealers  make  gradual  steps  towards  independence 
by ploughing back part of their profits to eventually become full dealers 
with their own working capital.
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EDUCATION AND YOUTH SUPPORT 

Total Kenya is actively involved in various educational and mentorship 
programmes with the aim of enriching young people’s skills and talents. 
The Young Graduate Programme, annual Youth Arcade, the TOTAL 
summer school, TOTAL Career Days and staff mentorship initiatives 
in partnership with the Global Give Back Circle are among the many 
initiatives that symbolize our commitment to youth development in 
Kenya.

Thanks to joint sponsorship from the French Embassy, Alliance 
Française and Total Kenya in 2015, schools from all over the country 
had an opportunity to pit their wits and French language skills against 
each other in a light-hearted competition, all winning useful equipment 
for their respective schools as well as individual sponsorship for French 
language lessons and an all-expenses-paid trip to France for the overall 
winner among other prizes.

Total Kenya also partners with SOS Children’s Villages in support of youth 
and vulnerable children. Through this initiative, both the employees and 
the company sponsor four houses in Nairobi, Kisumu and Mombasa. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

HEALTH 

The TOTAL “Be Alive” programme provides peer educators and 
Voluntary Counselling and Testing (VCT) throughout the company, with 
outreach to staff families and wider communities. It sets out a wholly 
non-discriminatory company policy. The programme also promotes 
staff wellness through regular health clinics. Every year, Total Kenya  
marks World Aids Day through various in-house and community 
outreach activities.

ROAD SAFETY 

Safety is a core value to Total. Total Kenya extends this commitment 
through education on safe driving and creating road safety awareness. 
Total Kenya is a major partner of Safe Way Right Way (SWRW), an 
NGO aimed at promoting road safety along the Northern Corridor in 
collaboration with government agencies such as the National Transport 
Safety Authority (NTSA). In 2015, the company and other SWRW 
partners launched an Emergency Rescue Center in Jomvu, Mombasa 
as well as donated equipment to the National Spine Injury Hospital, to 
further boost their capacity to deal with spine injuries.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

ARTS & CULTURE 

For over 10 years, Total 
Kenya has supported 
Alliance Française in 
promoting distinctive Kenyan 
music and nurturing musical 
talent at the grass-roots. Several 
of the Spotlight on Kenyan Music finalists 
have been impressive in the local and international 
scene. The programme has the objective of exposing and promoting 
musical talent and traditions as a resource for innovation and creativity.  

Spotlight on Kenyan Music celebrated its 10th anniversary during Total 
Kenya’s 60th anniversary celebrations with special performances at the 
2015 TOTAL Motorshow.

INDUSTRY SUPPORT

The TOTAL Motorshow 
remains the biggest motor expo 
in East and Central Africa and 
brings together players in the formal 
motor industry, auto accessories and other related value 
added services. Total is also a co-sponsor of the Africa 
Concours d’Elegance and the annual TOTAL Economy Run.

ACCESS TO ENERGY

The Total Group runs an initiative to improve the lives of people 
without access to electricity. In a bid to further improve the impact of 
this programme, Total Kenya has partnered with SOLARKIOSK AG, 
a Berlin based company with a similar objective, to set up Solarkiosk 
E-HUBB outlets for solar products, fast moving consumer goods and 
other clean energy services. 

INSTITUTIONAL DEVELOPMENT 

As a leading member of the Petroleum Institute of East Africa, Total 
Kenya champions high standards in the industry, and directly supports 
professional training of students in the PIEA School of Petroleum 
Studies. Total Kenya subscribes to many other local and international 
professional bodies.
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Jean-Christian BERGERON - Chairman

The strong performance 
in 2015 is deeply rooted 

in our unwavering 
commitment to 

customers and to safety, 
a commitment we have 
nurtured over the last 

60 years.
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It is my pleasure to welcome you to the 62nd Annual General 
Meeting of Total Kenya Limited and to present to you the Annual 
Report and Financial Statements for the Company for the year ended 
31 December 2015. This happens to be my first meeting as the 
Chairman of your Company, having assumed this responsibility on 15 
September 2015. In so doing, I replaced Mr. Jonathan Molapo, who 
left the Group after distinguished service to your Company since the 
year 2013. Having celebrated our 60th anniversary last year, I thank 
you, shareholders, specifically for the support you have continued 
to extend to your Company and we promise to work together to 
realise our full potential and growth prospects. As is our tradition, 
today presents an opportunity for you to review the activities and 
performance of your Company. 

ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
The macroeconomic environment remained challenging during the 
first half of 2015. However, a robust monetary policy put in place 
by the national government restored currency stability, contained 
inflation at 6.6% and stabilised the interest rates.

The Kenyan economy grew by 5.6% in 2015 and is projected to 
grow by 6% in 2016. Major sectors supporting the economic 
growth were transport, manufacturing, building and construction, 
mining and agriculture. These sectors were strongly supported by 
low petroleum prices, a favourable micro-economic environment, 
ongoing infrastructure projects across the country and adequate 
rainfall for agricultural activities. These areas are expected to drive 
the economic growth prospects in 2016 making Kenya one of the 
fastest growing economies in Eastern Africa. The Company shall 
remain focused and take full advantage of these growth prospects 
as they materialize. 

PETROLEUM ENVIRONMENT
The industry did welcome the appointment of a Principal Secretary in 
charge of Petroleum which is now separate from the previous docket 
of both Energy and Petroleum. This dedicated team has shown 
willingness and motivation to work closely with the industry to resolve 
ongoing issues. We are confident that this will assist in bringing even 
better efficiencies to the industry and fast track positive closure of all 
the pending industry matters including those related to the closure of 
the Kenya Petroleum Refineries Limited (KPRL).  

Volatility of petroleum prices at the international markets persisted 
in 2015. Thanks to the Open Tender System, Kenyan consumers 
benefited from very competitive fuel prices in line with the decline in 
international oil prices. 

The Kenya Pipeline Company (KPC) commissioned the construction 
of a new pipeline with a double capacity of up to 1700M3/hour from 
Mombasa to Nairobi compared to the existing one. This new pipeline, 
once completed, will significantly improve the supply situation in the 
country. 

PERFORMANCE
Total Kenya’s operations are always embedded in a strong culture 
built on Health, Safety, Security, Environment and Quality. To this 
end, I take this opportunity to thank the Total Kenya management, 
staff and all business partners for demonstrating strict discipline in 
preventing accidents and property damage, in protecting health and 
environment as well as ensuring high quality products and service 
delivery at all times.

The Company achieved good performance for the year ended 31 
December 2015 in spite of volatility in international oil prices and 
depreciation of the local currency against the US dollar. This good 
performance is mainly attributable to the efforts and action plans set 
by management to develop the business, manage working capital 
requirements and optimise costs and investments. 

Sales volumes increased by 7% up to 1,736 KMT in 2015 mainly 
attributable to sales to other Oil Marketers under the Open Tender 
System, Network, General Trade and Lubricants channels. Due 
to this continued good performance, the Company maintained its 

Ni furaha yangu kuwakaribisha katika mkutano mkuu wa kila 
mwaka wa kampuni ya Total Kenya Limited, huu ukiwa ni wa 62, 
na kuwasilisha kwenu ripoti ya kila mwaka na taarifa ya kifedha 
ya kampuni yenu katika kipindi kilichomalizika tarehe 31 mwezi 
Disemba mwaka 2015. Huu ndiyo mkutano wangu wa kwanza  
nikiwa mwenyekiti wa kampuni yenu,wadhifa ambao nilichukua 
tarehe 15 mwezi Septemba mwaka 2015.Nimechukua mahali pa 
Bw. Jonathan Molapo,aliyeondoka baada ya kuihudumia kampuni hii 
kwa bidii na uadilifu  tangu mwaka 2013.Na kwa vile mwaka uliopita 
tulisherehekea miaka 60 tangu kampuni hii ilipoanzishwa ,nachukua 
fursa hii kutoa shukrani zangu za dhati,hasa  kwa wenye hisa wetu, 
ambao wameonesha imani kwa kampuni hii, na kuendelea kuiunga 
mkono,na tunaahidi kuendelea kufanya kazi nanyi bega kwa bega 
,ili kuiwezesha kampuni hii kunakili ufanisi hata zaidi .Na kama ilivyo 
desturi,mkutano wa leo unawapa nyinyi, wenye hisa wetu, fursa ya 
kutathmin utendaji wa kampuni kibiashara katika kipindi cha mwaka 
mmoja uliopita.

MAZINGIRA YA BIASHARA 
Mazingira ya biashara yaliendelea kukumbwa na changamoto 
katika nusu ya kwanza ya mwaka 2015.Hata hivyo sera madhubuti 
za kifedha zilizotekelezwa na serikali ya kitaifa, zilisaidia kurejesha 
uthabiti wa kifedha,kuthibiti mfumko wa bei kwa kiwango cha asilimia 
6.6, na pia kuondoa unyumbufu katika viwango vya riba. 

Uchumi wa Kenya ulikua kwa asilimia 5.6 katika mwaka 2015, 
na unabashiriwa kukua kwa asilimia 6 katika mwaka 2016. Sekta 
muhimu zilizofanikisha ukuaji huo, ni uchukuzi,utengenezaji 
bidhaa,ujenzi ,uchimbaji madini na kilimo . Ufanisi wa sekta hizo 
ulichangiwa pakubwa na bei nafuu ya petroli,mazingira tulivu ya 
biashara,miradi inayoendelea kote nchini ya miundo mbinu, na 
mvua ya kutosha iliyowezesha sekta ya kilimo kunawiri. Sekta hizo 
zinabashiriwa kuwa nguzo muhimu kwa ukuaji wa uchumi wa nchi 
hii  katika kipindi cha mwaka 2016,na kufanya uchumi wa Kenya 
kuwa moja ya zile zinazokua kwa kasi katika eneo la Afrika Mashariki.
Kampuni yenu itaendelea kumakinika na kutumia mazingira hayo ya 
utulivu kujiimarisha kibiashara.
 
MAZINGIRA YA SEKTA YA PETROLI 
Sekta hii inaunga mkono kuteuliwa kwa katibu katika wizara ya kawi 
anayehusika moja kwa moja na maswala ya petroli.Katibu huyo na 
kikundi chake wameonesha nia njema katika kushirikiana na wadau 
kutatua maswala ibuka katika sekta hii muhimu.Ni matumaini yetu 
kwamba  ushirikiano huo utaongeza kasi katika utatuzi wa maswala 
yanayoathiri sekta hii, yakiwemo yale yanayohusiana na kufungwa 
kwa kiwanda cha kusafisha mafuta  cha Kenya Petroleum Refineries 
(KPRL).  

Unyumbufu wa bei ya petroli uliendelea kushuhudiwa katika 
kipindi cha mwaka 2015, huku watumiaji bidhaa hiyo hapa nchini 
wakinufaika pakubwa, hasa kufuatia uzinduzi wa mfumo wazi wa 
utoaji zabuni (OTS). 

Kampuni ya  Kenya Pipeline (KPC), nayo ilizindua ujenzi wa bomba 
jipya lililo na uwezo maradufu  wa kusafirisha  hadi  1700m3/kwa 
saa kutoka Mombasa hadi Nairobi,ikilinganishwa  na lile linalotumika 
kwa wakati huu.Bomba  hilo jipya baada ya kukamilika ,litaimarisha 
pakubwa usafirishaji mafuta hapa nchini.

MATOKEO YA BIASHARA 
Kampuni ya Total Kenya nyakati zote katika shughuli zake 
hutilia maanani  afya,usalama,mazingira na ubora .Kutokana na 
hayo,nachukua nafasi hii kuwashukuru wasimamizi wa kampuni 
ya Total Kenya ,wafanyakazi na wadau wetu katika biashara, kwa 
kuonesha umakinifu wa hali ya juu, kwa lengo la kuzuia ajali na 
uharibifu wa mali,kulinda  afya na mazingira ,kando na kuhakikisha 
kuwa tunatengeneza na kutoa bidhaa na huduma za hali ya juu 
nyakati zote
  
Kampuni ilinakili matokea bora katika kipindi cha biashara 
kilichokamilika tarehe 31 mwezi Disemba mwaka 2015, licha ya 
ukosefu wa uthabiti wa bei ya mafuta katika soko la kimataifa, 
pamoja na kupungua kwa thamani ya shillingi ya Kenya dhidi ya dola 
ya Marekani.  Matokeo hayo bora yametokana na juhudi, pamoja na 
ushirikiano mwema kati ya  wasimamizi wa kampuni na wafanyakazi.
 

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT TAARIFA YA MWENYEKITI
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leadership position in the Kenyan market.  The Company recorded a 
4% growth in margins to attain KShs. 6.99 billion in 2015.

Other income increased by KShs. 278 million as a result of disposal 
of assets held for sale.  Operating expenses increased by 8% (KShs. 
356 million) mainly due to the increase in depreciation and inflation on 
cost of goods and services. The net positive finance result of KShs. 
88 million in 2015 resulted from disciplined cash management. 

As a result of the depreciation of the Kenya Shilling against the US 
dollar, the Company suffered a foreign exchange loss of  KShs. 320 
million during the year (2014: KShs. 149 million). 

Profit before tax of KShs. 2.62 billion (2014: KShs. 2.28 billion) was 
realized.  Net profit for the year was KShs. 1.62 billion (2014:  KShs. 
1.42 billion). 

The Company maintained a very strong statement of financial position 
with a growth in net assets by 7% to KShs. 17.60 billion in 2015.

INVESTMENTS
With operations in all major counties and towns in the country, 
Total Kenya continued to make significant investments in 2015, an 
affirmation that the Board has confidence in the Kenyan economy 
and continues to strengthen the foundation for future growth. 
Investments totalling KShs. 1.76 billion were made in the year 
representing a significant increase of 22% compared to last year in 
line with the strategy to enhance safety standards and develop the 
business.

Indeed, we have continued to invest to ensure safety at all our 
installations for our personnel, contractors, customers and the 
environment at large. 

We have also maintained the upward momentum in the construction 
of new stations (8 new stations in 2015) spread across the country 
while, at the same time, remodelling and re-branding existing ones 
to improve our brand visibility. We have also invested in the purchase 
of new LPG cylinders to increase our float and continued to invest at 
consumer sites.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
As a responsible corporate citizen, Total Kenya strongly supports 
initiatives in the pillar issues of environment, road safety, health, 
education and culture.

Total is committed to ensuring that its activities create value and 
opportunities for local communities to spur economic growth.  Total 
Kenya launched the Startupper of the Year Challenge in 2015, an 
initiative by the Group in 34 African countries to motivate and support 
young entrepreneurs with the aim of promoting social and economic 
development on the continent.  Three winners were awarded and will 
receive coaching and mentoring from program partners, members of 
the jury as well as from our management team to mention but a few 
of the benefits.

To further develop entrepreneurship, one of the most impactful 
initiatives that we hold dear is the Young Dealer Program. This is an 
entrepreneurship scheme that supports the career development of 
young service station employees with proven skills by providing them 
with working capital, training, mentorship and technical support 
necessary to become independent dealers.

Total Kenya is also actively involved in various educational and 
mentorship programs with the aim of enriching young people’s skills 
and talents. These include the Young Graduate Program where a 
total of twenty four young graduates have so far benefited from the 
program in Kenya. In addition, we partner with Kenyan universities to 
promote youth career development. 

Mauzo yaliongezeka kwa asilimia 7 hadi 1,736 KMT mwaka 2015, 
hasa kutokana na mauzo kwa kampuni nyingine chini ya mfumo 
wazi wa utoaji zabuni (OTS), kupitia vituo vyetu,biashara ya jumla 
na mafuta laini yaani Lubricants.Kufuatia matokeo hayo bora ya 
biashara,kampuni ilidumisha uongozi wake katika sekta ya mafuta 
hapa nchini,ambapo ilinakili ukuaji wa asilimia 4 na kupata  shillingi 
billioni 6.99 katika mwaka 2015.

Mapato mengine yaliongezeka kwa shillingi million 278 kutokana na 
mauzo ya mali nyingine.Gharama ya matumizi nayo iliongezeka kwa 
asilimia 8 (KShs. 356 million) kutokana na kupungua kwa thamani 
ya shillingi, na ongezeko la gharama ya matumizi .Aidha kampuni 
iliokoa shillingi million 88 katika kipindi cha mwaka  2015, kutokana 
na nidhamu katika matumizi ya pesa .
 
Lakini kutokana na kupungua kwa  thamani ya shillingi dhidi ya dola 
ya Marekani,kampuni ilipata hasara  ya  shillingi million  320  katika 
kipindi hicho ,ikilinganishwa na shillingi million 149 katika kipindi cha 
mwaka 2014. 

Kwa ujumla kampuni ilipata faida ya shillingi billioni 2.62  kabla ya 
kulipa ushuru katika kipindi hicho, ikilinganishwa na shillingi  billioni 
2.28 katika mwaka 2014 .Faida halisi katika kipindi cha mwaka 2015 
ni shillingi billioni 1.62 ikilinganishwa na shillingi billioni 1.42 katika 
mwaka 2014.
Kampuni pia ilidumisha uthabiti wa kifedha ambapo mali halisi 
iliongezeka kwa asilimia 7, hadi shillingi billioni 17,60 katika mwaka 
2015.

UWEKEZAJI 
Huku tukiwa na biashara katika kaunti na miji mbali mbali kote 
nchini,Total Kenya iliendelea kuwekeza katika upanuzi wa biashara 
katika mwaka 2015,ishara kwamba bodi ya kampuni ina imani 
na uchumi wa taifa hili.Kampuni katika kipindi cha mwaka 2015 
iliwekeza jumla ya shillingi billioni 1.76,hiyo ikiwa nyongeza ya asilimia 
22 ikilinganishwa na mwaka uliotangulia,kuambatana na mkakati wa 
biashara wa kampuni.  

Tunaendelea kuwekeza katika upanuzi wa biashara na shughuli 
zetu, huku tukitilia maanani usalama wa vituo vyetu,wafanyakazi,wa
nakandarasi,wateja na  mazingira .
 
Pia tuliendelea kupanua biashara kwa kujenga vituo zaidi ambapo, 
katika kipindi cha mwaka 2015 pekee tulijenga vituo 8 vipya, huku 
tukikarabati na kurembesha vile vilivyoko kwa lengo la kuboresha 
huduma zetu .Pia tumewekeza katika ununuzi wa mitungi mipya ya 
gesi ,na ufunguzi wa vituo zaidi vya kuuza bidhaa hiyo, ili kurahisisha 
upatikanaji wake.
 
WAJIBU KWA JAMII
Kama kampuni inayowajibika, Total Kenya inaunga mkono kwa dhati 
maswala yanayohusu mazingira,usalama barabarani,afya,elimu na 
hata utamaduni .

Total imejitolea kuhakikisha kwamba shughuli hizo zinaongeza 
thamani na nafasi kwa jamii  za maeneo ambapo inaendesha 
biashara kwa ukuzi wa uchumi.Total Kenya mwaka uliopita ilizindua 
shindano kwa jina Startupper of the Year Challenge,shindano 
ambalo kundi la kampuni za Total linatekeleza katika nchi 34 za 
bara la Afrika ,madhumuni yakiwa kuwapa motisha na kuwasaidia 
wajasiria mali chipukizi ,kwa lengo la kuleta maendeleo ya kijamii 
na kiuchumi barani Afrika .Washindi watatu kwenye shindano hilo 
walituzwa  na wanapokea mafunzo na ushauri kutoka kwa wadau 
,waamuzi kwenye shindano hilo, na pia wasimamizi wa kampuni 
,miongoni mwa wengine .

Na ili kuchangia hata zaidi katika ukuaji wa sekta hii,kampuni 
ilianzisha mpango inayouthamini zaidi wa kujenga nyenzo kwa 
wafanyakazi katika vituo changa vya kuuza mafuta kwa jina Young 
Dealer Program. Huu ni mpango wa kibiashara ambao ,  unawasaidia  
wafanyakazi wanaohusika kujikuza kitaaluma,kwa kuwapa mtaji 
,mafunzo na pia ushauri wa kiufundi wa kuwawezesha kujitegemea 
baadaye.
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The Company also partners with SOS Children’s Villages in support 
of youth and vulnerable children. Through this initiative, both the 
employees and the Company sponsor four houses in Nairobi, 
Kisumu and Mombasa. We will continue to foster this relationship.

We remain deeply concerned about the loss of lives on our roads 
and work closely with the National Transport and Safety Authority 
together with the Safe Way Right Way partners in championing 
road safety awareness among motorists and the general public. 
To demonstrate this partnership, in November 2015, we donated 
equipment worth KShs. 5.1 million to the National Spinal Injury 
Hospital’s ICU ward to support victims of major road accidents.
 
With a firm belief that the greatest threat to Kenya’s environment is 
deforestation, we initiated and continue to expand the TOTAL Eco 
Challenge program which mobilises projects that are involved in 
planting millions of trees every year. We work very closely with the 
Kenya Forest Service (KFS) and other related government agencies 
to complement the national efforts in this key area.  Further, Total 
Kenya has been consistently championing conservation efforts 
and remains the official oil sponsor of the annual Rhino Charge, an 
initiative that raises funds for the conservation of some of the most 
important water towers in the country.

OUTLOOK FOR 2016
The economic environment and petroleum market are expected to 
remain dynamic in 2016. It is on this premise that the Board is confident 
that, with continued investments, experienced management and 
staff and presence in all sectors of the economy, the Company is 
positioned to take full advantage of all profitable opportunities and to 
continue to perform well in line with the business strategy.

DIVIDENDS
In view of the good performance of the Company and the need to 
continue investing, the Directors are recommending for the approval 
at this Annual General Meeting the payment of a first and final 
dividend of KShs. 0.77 per share for the year ended 31 December 
2015. This represents a 10% payout increase as compared to 2014. 
Dividend is payable to shareholders on the register of members at 
the close of business on 10 June 2016, subject to withholding tax 
where applicable.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
In three days time, we shall be marking our 61st anniversary in the 
country. We thank our valued customers, business partners and 
the government for the support and goodwill we have continued to 
receive throughout our presence in Kenya.  

On behalf of the Board, I also wish to thank the management and 
staff for their continued commitment and contribution towards the 
satisfactory results achieved in 2015.

To you, shareholders, allow me to appreciate the confidence you 
have shown by choosing to invest in Total Kenya and we look 
forward to further strengthening our relationship for the growth of 
your business.

Finally, I wish to thank the members of the Board of Directors for their 
dedication and able support that has helped your Company remain a 
major and responsible player in our market.

Jean-Christian BERGERON
Chairman

Total Kenya pia inajihusisha kwenye mipango mbali mbali ya masomo 
na utoaji ushauri nasaha kwa vijana, ili kuwapa ujuzi na kukuza vipaji 
vyao. Jumla ya mahafala 24 wamefaidika chini ya mpango huo hapa 
nchini.Pia tunashirikiana na vyuo vikuu hapa nchini kuwasaidia vijana 
kujiendeleza kitaaluma.    

Kampuni pia hushirikiana na makao ya watoto ya SOS, kuwasaidia 
vijana na watoto waliotelekezwa .Kupitia mpango huu, kampuni 
na wafanyakazi wake inafadhili nyumba nne katika miji ya Nairobi, 
Kisumu na Mombasa.Tunaahidi kudumisha na kukuza ushirikiano 
huo.

Tunasikitishwa na idadi kubwa ya watu wanaopoteza maisha kwenye 
barabara zetu,na ndiyo sababu tunashirikiana na halmashauri ya 
kitaifa ya usalama barabarani-NTSA pamoja na shirika la Safe Way 
Right Way katika harakati za hamasisho kwa wenye magari na 
watumiaji barabara kwa jumla kuhusu umuhimu wa kuzingatia sheria 
za barabarani .Ili kudhihirisha kujitolea kwetu kwa mpango huu,mwezi 
novemba mwaka 2015,tulitoa vifaa vya thamani ya shillingi million 
5.1 kwa wodi ya wagonjwa mahututi katika hospitali ya majeraha ya 
uti wa mgongo kuwasaidia waathiriwa wa ajali mbaya za barabarani.

Kwa kutambua kwamba tisho kuu kwa mazingira hapa nchini ni 
ukataji miti,tulianzisha na tunaendelea kupanua mradi wetu kuhusu 
uhifadhi wa mazingira kwa jina TOTAL Eco Challenge,mradi ambao 
hushirikisha upanzi wa mamillioni ya miti kila mwaka.Tunafanya kazi 
kwa ushirikiano na shirika la kitaifa la uhifadhi wa misitu, KFS na 
asasi nyingine husika za serikali, kukidhia juhudi za serikali kuu katika 
nyanja hiyo muhimu. Pia, Total Kenya imeendelea kuwa mstari wa 
mbele katika uhifadhi wa mazingira, kwa kuwa mfadhili rasmi wa 
mafuta kwenye shindano la kila mwaka “Rhino Charge”, ambalo 
hutumika kuchanga pesa za kuhifadhi baadhi ya vyanzo muhimu vya 
maji hapa nchini.

MATARAJIO MWAKA 2016
Mazingira ya kiuchumi na soko la petroli hapa nchini yanatarajiwa 
kusalia thabiti kwa kipindi cha mwaka 2016 .Bodi ya kampuni yenu 
inatumai kwamba kwa kuendelea kuwekeza katika mipango ya 
upanuzi ,kuwepo wa wasimamizi walio na uzoefu,  na wafanyakazi 
wenye juhudi, kampuni yenu itaendelea kunakili matokeo bora 
kuambatana na mkakati wake wa kibiashara. 

MGAO WA FAIDA
Kufuatia matokeo mema ya biashara pamoja na  haja iliyopo ya 
kuendelea kuwekeza katika miradi ya upanuzi wa shughuli  zetu, 
wakurugenzi wanapendekeza kwa mkutano huu kuidhinisha mgao 
wa faida wa kwanza na wa mwisho wa senti 77 kwa kila hisa, kwa 
kipindi cha mwaka uliomalizikia tarehe 31 Desemba 2015.Mgao wa 
faida  mwaka huu umeongezeka kwa asilimia 10 ikilinganishwa na 
mwaka 2014 .Mgao huo wa faida utalipwa wenyehisa walio kwenye 
sajili ya wanachama kufikia mwisho wa biashara tarehe 10 mwezi 
juni mwaka 2016.

SHUKRANI 
Katika kipindi cha siku tatu zijazo,tutasherehekea mwaka wa 61 
tangu kuanzishwa kwa kampuni yenu hapa nchini . Tunawashukuru 
wateja wetu tunaowathamini, washirika  wetu kibiashara na serikali,  
kwa usaidizi ambao tumepokea kutoka kwao katika kipindi cha 
huduma yetu hapa nchini Kenya.

Kwa niaba ya bodi,nawashukuru wasimamizi na wafanyakazi  kwa 
juhudi  na mchango wao ambao, umeiwezesha kampuni yenu 
kunakili matokeo bora ya biashara katika kipindi cha mwaka 2015 .

Kwa wenye hisa, nawashukuru kwa imani mumeonesha kwa kuamua 
kuwekeza katika kampuni ya Total Kenya, na tunatarajia kuimarisha 
hata zaidi ushirikiano huo kwa ukuaji wa kampuni yenu.

Mwisho,nawashukuru wanachama wa bodi ya  wakurugenzi ya Total 
Kenya Limited, kwa jitihada na usaidizi wao, ambao umeiwezesha 
kampuni hii kusalia mdau muhimu katika sekta ya mafuta hapa 
nchini.
  

Jean-Christian Bergeron
Mwenyekiti 
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MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Anne-Solange RENOUARD (Managing Director)

Maurice K’ANJEJO (Corporate Affairs Manager)

Alban TARNEAUD (Marketing Manager) 

Irene MUINDE (HR & Administration Manager)

Joshua OUMA (Operations Manager)

Premanand DHOOMON (Finance Director)

Aegidia SCHNEPP (Planning & Supply Manager)

Charles WAMBUGU (Chief Internal Auditor)

John MUCHUNU (HSSEQ Manager)

Kenneth KOSKEI (Specialties Manager) 
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OVERVIEW OF THE 2015  FINANCIAL YEAR 

SUMMARY OF RESULTS

The Company remained resilient to the challenging 
operating environment which included volatility in 
international oil prices and depreciation of the local 
currency against the US dollar and posted good results 
for the year ended 31 December 2015. This good 
performance is attributable to the efforts and action plans 
set by management to develop the business, manage 
working capital requirements, close monitoring of 
operating expenses and continued investments in safety 
and profitable channels.

Total Kenya global sales volume went up by 7% to 1,736 
KMT in 2015 mainly attributable to increased sales to 
other Oil Marketers under the Open Tender System (OTS), 
Network, General Trade and Lubricants. As a result of the 
strong sales performance in the various channels, the 
company was able to retain inland market leadership 
position.

Net sales decreased by 22% to KShs.120 billion in 2015 
due to drop in international oil prices. Cost of sales 
decreased by 31%. 

Gross profit which represents 6% of Net sales increased 
by 4% to KShs.6,990 million in 2015 as a result of 
increased sales volumes. 

Operating costs increased by 8% resulting from inflation 
on the cost of goods and services and increase in 
depreciation of assets.

Net finance income of KShs.88 million in 2015 resulted 
from positive cash position in Kenya shilling and close 
monitoring of daily cash position.

Profit before tax of KShs. 2.62 billion (2014: KShs 2.28 
billion) was realized.  Net profit for the year was KShs. 
1.62 billion (2014:  KShs. 1.42 billion). 
 
Investments during the year amounted to KShs.1.76 
billion representing a 22% increase compared to 2014 in 
line with the strategy to enhance safety standards and  
continue to develop the business. 

ANALYSIS BY BUSINESS CHANNELS

The company’s four business channels are:
•  The Network channel, which includes the distribution 

of petroleum and lubricant products through service 
stations located across the country.

•  The General Trade channel, which includes sales of a 
broad range of products to industrial consumers;

•  The Aviation channel, which comprises of sales of 
turbine kerosene and aviation gasoline to local and 
international air carriers;

•  The Exports and Bulk channel, which comprises of 
sales of our full range of products to neighbouring 
countries and other industry players.

NETWORK

The network market environment remained competitive. 
Sales in this channel registered a growth of 12% to 468 
KMT in 2015 mainly attributable to the growth in the 
market, provision of quality service to customers and 
continued investments in new sites and revamping of 
existing ones. 

The company’s objective is to continue investing in areas 
where population and traffic are growing. The range of 
our non-oil services has continued to grow. They include: 
Convenient stores “Bonjour shops”, Partnership with 
third parties, Restaurants, Auto clean for Car wash and 
Auto express service for pit-stop. 

The Bon Voyage card has remained the prefered one 
amongst individuals and corporate companies and has 
ensured customer loyalty. Our objective is to remain 
competitive as we strive to fully meet the expectations of 
our customers.

Network - Key Figures 2015 2014 % 
CHANGE

Number of service stations
Volumes Sold in KMT

180
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419

1%
12%
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The company maintained a very strong statement of 
financial position recording a growth of  7% in net assets 
to KShs.17.6 billion in 2015. 

The company continued to invest substantially at KShs. 
1.76 billion in the year (up by 22% compared to 2014) in 
line with the strategy to enhance safety standards and 
develop the business.

CONTRIBUTION TO THE KENYAN ECONOMY

Total Kenya has remained a key player in the Kenyan oil 
industry and the economy as a whole. During the year 

under review, the company continued to make significant 
contribution to the Kenyan economy as it carried on with 
its business and corporate social responsibility activities. 
Total Kenya remained at the top on the list of the biggest 
tax payers in the country, having paid direct and indirect 
taxes of over KShs. 20.3 billion (KShs. 20.1 billion in 2014).  
The total financial impact on the economy in 2015 was 
KShs. 33.4 billion (2014 KShs. 32.6 billion) comprising the 
following in MKShs.: (See chart next page).

2016 MANAGEMENT AGENDA

The oil industry has  continued to face challenges relating 
to the pipeline capacity, widespread illegal refilling of LPG 
cylinders and rising counterfeiting of Lubricants.

MANAGEMENT REPORT
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GENERAL TRADE

The General Trade channel remained competitive with 
increased new entrants in the industry impacting sales in 
the reseller market. Total Kenya volumes in this channel 
remained stable as compared to previous year.

LUBRICANTS

Total Kenya distributes a wide range of quality lubricants 
in various sectors of the economy. The sales increased 
by 11% to 27.5 KMT in 2015 mainly attributable to 
the continued investments to enhance capacity of the 
Lubricant Oil Blending Plant in Mombasa, captured 
growth in the market and provision of quality services to 
customers.

AVIATION

The drop in the Aviation market by 6% led to Total Kenya 
sales volumes in this channel to decrease by 3% (from 
136 KMT in 2014 to 132 KMT in 2015). 

EXPORTS AND BULK

Export and Bulk sales increased by 10% to 872KMT 
in 2015.This resulted from the company’s continued 
participation and winning of several contracts to supply 
the industry with refined products under the OTS 
Agreement. 
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MANAGEMENT REPORT

Contribution to the Kenyan economy 2015 (MKShs.) 

Local suppliers, 
10,024  

Taxes, 
20,295 

Personnel, 
1,386 

Investments, 
1,759 

Recent developments in the industry including the 
commissioning of construction of a new 20 inch pipeline, 
focus on petroleum matters by appointing a Principal 
Secretary in charge of petroleum and concerted efforts 
by the government and the industry to address the above 
challenges provide opportunities for growth.

The Management is confident that the company has 
positioned itself to capture growth and opportunities in 
the market and continue to register good performance in 
2016 and beyond.

Therefore the management will:
• Focus on achieving the company’s mission of 

delivering quality products and services to our 
customers responsibly and profitably in an innovative 
way

• Ensure safety standards at all company installations
• Continue to harness the opportunities in the market 

and enhance profitable growth
• Maintain control over costs
• Continue to attract, develop and retain best talent.
• Reinforce the brand through expansion, external 

recognition and community commitment
•  Continue to invest in renewable energy opportunities

SHARE PRICE EVOLUTION

In 2015, Total Kenya share price traded between 
KShs.17.35 and KShs..28.65 per share.
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SHAREHOLDERS  ANALYSIS

TOP 10 SHAREHOLDERS

Rank  Name  Shares Held   Percentage

1  TOTAL OUTRE-MER  580,804,822   92.26
2  TOTAL AFRICA LIMITED  10,732,950  1.70
3 KIMANI, JOHN KIBUNGA  3,013,701   0.48
4 BENJAMIN, EMMETT JOSEPH  2,368,700   0.38
5  SHAH, RAJESH DHARAMSHI  1,728,386   0.27
6  BID PLANTATIONS LTD  1,252,100   0.20
7  THE JUBILEE INSURANCE COMPANY OF KENYA LIMITED  566,736   0.09
8  CANNON ASSURANCE (KENYA) LIMITED  544,300   0.09
9 STANDARD CHARTERED NOMINEES NON RESD A/C 9306  499,600   0.08 
10  RAHIM, AHMED MIAN ABDUR  459,960   0.07 

  601,971,255  95.62

SHARE DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULE

      i) BY NUMBER OF SHARE RANGE

Range   No. of Members  Total No.   Percentage
   of Shares 

1 - 500   2,345  519,779   0.0826
501 - 1,000   946  818,922   0.1301
1,001 - 5,000   1,496  3,872,440   0.6151
5,001 - 10,000   392  2,929,563   0.4653
10,001 - 50,000   350  7,288,884   1.1578
50,001 - 100,000   63  4,546,869   0.7223
100,001 - 500,000   40  8,554,306   1.3588
500,001 - 1,000,000   2  1,111,036   0.1765
1,000,001 - 999,999,999,999   6  599,900,659   95.2915

  5,640  629,542,458  100.00

      ii) BY CATEGORY OF SHAREHOLDER

No. of Members  Group   Total   Percentage
   Quantity

82  FOREIGN INVESTORS  593,006,065   94.196
5,156  **E.A.P.S. INDIVIDUALS  29,574,281   4.698
402  **E.A.P.S INSTITUTIONS  6,962,112   1.106

5,640  TOTALS  629,542,458   100.000  

**East Africa Partner States
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 
TO THE MEMBERS OF TOTAL KENYA LIMITED

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the financial statements of Total Kenya Limited set out on pages 24 to 60, which comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2015, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements 

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Kenyan Companies Act, and for such internal control as 
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Total Kenya Limited as at 31 
December 2015, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act.
 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

As required by the Kenyan Companies Act we report to you, based on our audit, that:

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of our audit;

ii) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our examination of those books; 
and,

iii)  the Company’s statement of financial position and statement of  profit or loss and other comprehensive income are in agreement 
with the books of account.

The engagement partner responsible for the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Herbert Chiveli Wasike –P.1485.

Nairobi, Kenya

Wednesday, 30 March 2016
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

  2015 2014
	 Notes	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
   
Gross sales  138,027,279 170,725,560
Indirect taxes and duties    (17,773,285)   (15,623,868)
   
Net sales  3 120,253,994 155,101,692
   
Cost of sales  4 (113,263,567) (148,351,545)
   
Gross	profit	 	 6,990,427	 6,750,147
   
Other income  5 766,065 487,693
Operating expenses  6 (4,905,099) (4,548,854)
Finance income  7 (a) 127,073 8,541
Finance costs  7 (b) (39,428) (272,336)
Net foreign exchange loss 7 (c)        (320,342)        (149,186)
   
Profit	before	tax	 8	 2,618,696	 2,276,005
   
Tax charge  9    (1,003,693)        (851,917)
   
Profit	for	the	year		 	 1,615,003	 1,424,088
   
Other comprehensive income, net of tax                        -                        -
   
Total comprehensive income for the year      1,615,003      1,424,088
   
Earnings per share (basic and diluted) (KShs) 10                 2.57                 2.26
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  2015 2014
	 Notes	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
   
ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS   
Property, plant and equipment  12 8,942,783 8,619,679
Prepaid operating leases  13 824,398 708,176
Goodwill  14    416,679 416,679
Intangible assets  15 87,498 94,006
Deferred tax asset  16       495,486      463,123
   
  10,766,844 10,301,663

CURRENT ASSETS   
Inventories  17 10,017,977 11,159,064
Tax recoverable   9 (iii) 16,946 -
Trade and other receivables  18 9,418,304 8,608,970
Amounts due from related companies  19 (i) 1,365,040 1,943,569
Cash and cash equivalents  25 (ii)     2,615,560       498,965
   
  23,433,827 22,210,568
   
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 20         24,364         29,569
   
  23,458,191 22,240,137
   
TOTAL ASSETS  34,225,035 32,541,800
   
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES   
   
EQUITY   
Share capital 21 9,974,771 9,974,771
Share premium 22 1,967,520 1,967,520
Retained earnings     5,657,455   4,483,132
   
  17,599,746 16,425,423
   
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Trade and other payables  23 1,244,627   1,192,167
   
CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Unclaimed dividends   11 6,748 6,748
Tax payable    9 (iii) - 32,416                                               
Trade and other payables  23 8,245,608 7,332,924
Amounts due to holding Company  19 (iii) 2,979,970 194,100
Amounts due to related companies  19 (ii) 79,326 17,604
Short term  borrowings  24   4,069,010   7,340,418
   
  15,380,662 14,924,210
   
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  34,225,035 32,541,800

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2016 and were signed on its 
behalf by:

Director Director

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

 Share Share Retained Total
 capital premium earnings equity
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
    
As at 1 January 2014 9,974,771 1,967,520 3,436,769 15,379,060
Dividends declared – 2013 (Note 11) - - (377,725) (377,725)

Profit  for the year  - - 1,424,088 1,424,088
Other comprehensive income                   -                  -                   -                    -

Total comprehensive income                   -                  -  1,424,088   1,424,088
    
As at 31 December 2014  9,974,771  1,967,520 4,483,132 16,425,423
    
As at 1 January 2015  9,974,771  1,967,520 4,483,132 16,425,423
Dividends declared – 2014 (Note 11) - - (440,680) (440,680)

Profit  for the year  - - 1,615,003 1,615,003
Other comprehensive income                   -                   -                   -                   -

Total comprehensive income                   -                   -  1,615,003   1,615,003
    
As at 31 December 2015  9,974,771  1,967,520  5,657,455 17,599,746
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 Notes 2015 2014
	 	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
   
Cash generated from /(used in) operations  25 (i) 8,912,909 (5,659,873)
Tax paid   9 (iii) (1,085,418) (1,423,566)
   
Net cash  generated from /(used in) operating activities    7,827,491 (7,083,439)
   
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
   
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  12 (1,496,485) (1,314,189)
Purchase of prepaid operating leases  13 (248,078) (111,736)
Purchase of intangible assets  15 (14,675) (20,744)
Interest income on bank deposits    7 (a) 127,073 8,541
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment   15,979 24,531
Proceeds on disposal of assets held for sale        230,556       9,785
   
Net cash used in investing activities   (1,385,630) (1,403,812)
   
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
   
Interest expense on borrowings    7 (b) (39,428) (272,336)
Dividends paid  11    (440,680)    (375,932)

Net	cash	used	in	financing	activities	 	 			(480,108)	 			(648,268)
     
Net  increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  5,961,753 (9,135,519)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (573,750) (190,809)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January    (6,841,453)    2,484,875
     
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 25 (ii)  (1,453,450)  (6,841,453)

    

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 
in the manner required by the Kenyan Companies Act. The 
measurement basis applied is the historical cost basis, except 
where otherwise stated in the accounting policies below. The 
financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings rounded to 
the nearest thousand (KShs’ 000).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS 
requires the use of estimates and assumptions. It also requires 
directors to exercise judgment in the process of applying the 
Company’s accounting policies. Although these estimates 
are based on the directors’ best knowledge of current events 
and actions, actual results may differ from those estimates. 
Accounting policy in note 2 below on ‘significant accounting 
judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty’ highlights 
the areas that involve a higher level of judgement, or where the 
estimates or assumptions used are significant to the financial 
statements.

For purposes of reporting under the Kenyan Companies Act, 
the balance sheet in these financial statements is represented 
by the statement of financial position and the profit and loss 
account is represented by the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income.

(b) New and amended standards, interpretations and 
improvements

The Company applied for the first time certain standards and 
amendments, which are effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2015. These new standards did not 
have a material impact on the annual financial statements of 
the Company. The Company has not early adopted any other 
standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but 
is not yet effective.  A list of the standards and amendments is 
below:

• Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: 
Employee Contributions

• Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle
- IFRS 2: Share-based Payment
- IFRS 3: Business Combinations
- IFRS 8: Operating Segments
- IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 

38 Intangible Assets
- IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures

• Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle
- IFRS 3: Business Combinations
- IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement
- IAS 40: Investment Property

The nature and the impact of the relevant new standard or 
amendment on the Company is described below:

Amendments	 to	 IAS	 19	 Defined	 Benefit	 Plans:	 Employee	
Contributions
IAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees 
or third parties when accounting for defined benefit plans. Where 
the contributions are linked to service, they should be attributed 
to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments 
clarify that, if the amount of the contributions is independent 
of the number of years of service, an entity is permitted to 
recognise such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in 
the period in which the service is rendered, instead of allocating 
the contributions to the periods of service. This amendment is 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014. 
This amendment is not relevant to the Company, since it does 
not have a defined benefit plan. 
                                             
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

With the exception of the improvement relating to IFRS 2 Share-
based Payment applied to share-based payment transactions 
with a grant date on or after 1 July 2014, all other improvements 
are effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 
2014. 

They include:

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
This improvement is applied prospectively and clarifies various 
issues relating to the definitions of performance and service 
conditions which are vesting conditions. These amendments did 
not impact the company’s financial statements or accounting 
policies since the company does not have such transactions. 
This improvement has a grant date on or after 1 July 2014.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that all 
contingent consideration arrangements classified as liabilities 
(or assets) arising from a business combination should be 
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss 
whether or not they fall within the scope of IAS 39. This is 
consistent with the company’s current accounting policy and, 
thus, this amendment did not impact the company’s accounting 
policy. This improvement is effective for accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments
The amendments are applied retrospectively and clarify that:
• An entity must disclose the judgements made by 

management in applying the aggregation criteria in 
paragraph 12 of IFRS 8, including a brief description of 
operating segments that have been aggregated and the 
economic characteristics (e.g., sales and gross margins) 
used to assess whether the segments are ‘similar’

• The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only 
required to be disclosed if the reconciliation is reported to 
the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required 
disclosure for segment liabilities

These amendments are not applicable to the company since 
the entity is a single reportable segment. This improvement is 
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 
2014.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued)

(b) New and amended standards, interpretations and 
improvements (continued)

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle (continued)

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible 
Assets
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in IAS 
16 and IAS 38 that the asset may be revalued by reference to 
observable data by either adjusting the gross carrying amount 
of the asset to market value or by determining the market value 
of the carrying value and adjusting the gross carrying amount 
proportionately so that the resulting carrying amount equals 
the market value. In addition, the accumulated depreciation or 
amortisation is the difference between the gross and carrying 
amounts of the asset. This amendment did not have any impact 
on the company as the company carries its property, plant and 
equipment at cost and does not have revalued assets. This 
improvement is effective for accounting periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2014.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures 
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that a 
management entity (an entity that provides key management 
personnel services) is a related party subject to the related party 
disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity 
is required to disclose the expenses incurred for management 
services. This amendment is not relevant for the company as 
it neither provides management services to other entities, nor 
receives any management services from other entities. This 
improvement is effective for accounting periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2014.

Annual Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

IFRS 3 Business Combinations
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies for the 
scope exceptions within IFRS 3 that joint arrangements, not just 
joint ventures, are outside the scope of IFRS 3.
This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the 
financial statements of the joint arrangement itself. The company 
is not a joint arrangement, and thus this amendment is not 
relevant for the company. These improvements are effective from 
1 July 2014.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the 
portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be applied not only to financial 
assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within 
the scope of IAS 39. The company does not apply the portfolio 
exception in IFRS 13. These improvements are effective from 1 
July 2014.

IAS 40 Investment Property
The description of ancillary services in IAS 40 differentiates 
between investment property and owner-occupied property 
(i.e., property, plant and equipment). The amendment is applied 
prospectively and clarifies that IFRS 3, and not the description of 
ancillary services in IAS 40, is used to determine if the transaction 
is the purchase of an asset or a business combination. In 
previous periods, the company has relied on IFRS 3, not IAS 
40, in determining whether an acquisition is of an asset or is 

a business acquisition. Thus, this amendment did not impact 
the accounting policy of the company. These improvements are 
effective from 1 July 2014.

Standards, improvements and amendments issued but not 
yet effective 

The standards improvements and amendments that are issued, 
but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the company’s 
financial statements are disclosed below. The company intends 
to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become 
effective.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 
Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 
9. IFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of the accounting for 
financial instruments project: classification and measurement, 
impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early 
application permitted. Except for hedge accounting, retrospective 
application is required but providing comparative information is 
not compulsory. For hedge accounting, the requirements are 
generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions.

The company plans to adopt the new standard on the required 
effective date. During 2015, the company has performed a 
high-level impact assessment of all three aspects of IFRS 9. 
This preliminary assessment is based on currently available 
information and may be subject to changes arising from further 
detailed analyses or additional reasonable and supportable 
information being made available to the company in the future. 
Overall, the company expects no significant impact on its 
balance sheet and equity.

(a) Classification and measurement
The company does not expect a significant impact on its balance 
sheet or equity on applying the classification and measurement 
requirements of IFRS 9. The company currently has no financial 
instruments measured at fair value. 
 
Trade receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows 
and are expected to give rise to cash flows representing solely 
payments of goods sold. Thus, the company expects that these 
will continue to be measured at amortised cost under IFRS 
9. However, the company will analyse the contractual cash 
flow characteristics of those instruments in more detail before 
concluding whether all those instruments meet the criteria for 
amortised cost measurement under IFRS 9.

(b) Impairment
IFRS 9 requires the company to record expected credit losses 
on all of its trade receivables, either on a 12-month or lifetime 
basis. The company expects to apply the simplified approach 
and record lifetime expected losses on all trade receivables. The 
company does not expect a significant impact on its equity due 
to secured nature of its receivables, but it will need to perform 
a more detailed analysis which considers all reasonable and 
supportable information, including forward-looking elements to 
determine the extent of the impact.

(c) Hedge accounting

The company has no existing hedge relationships that qualify for 
hedge accounting under IFRS 9. 
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued)

(b) New and amended standards, interpretations and 
improvements (continued)

Standards, improvements and amendments issued but not 
yet effective (continued)

Amendments	to	IFRS	11	Joint	Arrangements:	Accounting	for	
Acquisitions of Interests

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator 
accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, 
in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a 
business, must apply the relevant IFRS 3 principles for business 
combinations accounting. The amendments also clarify that a 
previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on 
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation 
while joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion 
has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do 
not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the 
reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate 
controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial 
interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional 
interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not 
expected to have any impact on the company as the company 
does not have such arrangements.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose 
activities are subject to rate-regulation, to continue applying 
most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral 
account balances upon its first-time adoption of IFRS. Entities 
that adopt IFRS 14 must present the regulatory deferral accounts 
as separate line items on the statement of financial position and 
present movements in these account balances as separate line 
items in the statement of profit or loss and OCI. The standard 
requires disclosure of the nature of, and risks associated with, 
the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation 
on its financial statements.
IFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2016. Since the company is an existing IFRS preparer, 
this standard would not apply.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a five-step 
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with 
customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to 
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a 
customer.

The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue 
recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full retrospective 
application or a modified retrospective application is required 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Early 
adoption is permitted. The company plans to adopt the new 
standard on the required effective date using the full retrospective 
method. During 2015, the company performed a preliminary 
assessment of IFRS 15, which is subject to changes arising from 

a more detailed ongoing analysis. Furthermore, the company is 
considering the clarifications issued by the IASB in an exposure 
draft in July 2015 and will monitor any further developments.
The company is in the business of selling petroleum products.

(a) Sale of goods
Contracts with customers in which sale of petroleum is the only 
performance obligation are not expected to have any impact on 
the company. The company expects the revenue recognition to 
occur at a point in time when control of the asset is transferred to 
the customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
In applying IFRS 15, the company is considering the following:

(i) Variable consideration
Some contracts with customers provide a right of return, trade 
discounts or volume rebates. Currently, the company recognises 
revenue from the sale of goods measured at the fair value of 
the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and 
allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

IFRS 15 requires the estimated variable consideration to be 
constrained to prevent over-recognition of revenue.

 (ii) Warranty obligations
The company does not provide warranties to its customers due 
to the nature of its business. 

(iii) Loyalty points programme 
The company does not currently have in place a loyalty 
programme offered to its customers. 

(b) Rendering of services
The company does not provide services but deals in the sale of 
petroleum products. 

The company plans to adopt the new standard on the required 
effective date using the full retrospective method.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable 
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 
that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are 
generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) 
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through 
use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot 
be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may 
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible 
assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption 
permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any 
impact to the company given that the company has not used 
a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current assets.

Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial 
Statements
The amendments will allow entities to use the equity method 
to account for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates in their separate financial statements. Entities already 
applying IFRS and electing to change to the equity method in 
its separate financial statements will have to apply that change 
retrospectively. For first-time adopters of IFRS electing to use the 
equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be 
required to apply this method from the date of transition to IFRS. 
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. These 
amendments will not have any impact on the company’s financial 
statements as the company does not have such transactions.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued)

(b) New and amended standards, interpretations and 
improvements (continued)

Standards, improvements and amendments issued but not 
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution 
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint 
Venture
The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 
28 in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold 
or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The amendments 
clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution 
of assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between 
an investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognised in full. 
Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets 
that do not constitute a business, however, is recognised only to 
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint 
venture. These amendments must be applied prospectively and 
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not 
expected to have any impact on the company as the company 
does not have such transactions.

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
These improvements are effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2016. They include:

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations
Assets (or disposal groups) are generally disposed of either 
through sale or distribution to owners. The amendment clarifies 
that changing from one of these disposal methods to the other 
would not be considered a new plan of disposal, rather it is a 
continuation of the original plan. 
There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the 
requirements in IFRS 5. This amendment must be applied 
prospectively.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
(i) Servicing contracts
The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes 
a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. 
An entity must assess the nature of the fee and the arrangement 
against the guidance for continuing involvement in IFRS 7 in order 
to assess whether the disclosures are required. The assessment 
of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement 
must be done retrospectively. However, the required disclosures 
would not need to be provided for any period beginning before the 
annual period in which the entity first applies the amendments.

(ii) Applicability of the amendments to IFRS 7 to condensed 
interim financial statements
The amendment clarifies that the offsetting disclosure 
requirements do not apply to condensed interim financial 
statements, unless such disclosures provide a significant update 
to the information reported in the most recent annual report. This 
amendment must be applied retrospectively.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits
The amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality 
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which 
the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where 
the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high 

quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates 
must be used. This amendment must be applied prospectively.

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
The amendment clarifies that the required interim disclosures 
must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated 
by cross-reference between the interim financial statements and 
wherever they are included within the interim financial report 
(e.g., in the management commentary or risk report). The other 
information within the interim financial report must be available 
to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements 
and at the same time. This amendment must be applied 
retrospectively.

These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the 
company.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 
clarify, rather than significantly change, existing IAS 1 
requirements. The amendments clarify:

•	 The materiality requirements in IAS 1
•	 That specific line items in the statement of profit or loss 

and other comprehensive income and the statement of 
financial position may be disaggregated

•	 That entities have flexibility as to the order in which 
they present the notes to financial statements

•	 That the share of other comprehensive income of as-
sociates and joint ventures accounted for using the 
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a 
single line item, and classified between those items 
that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to 
profit or loss. 

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that 
apply when additional subtotals are presented in the statement 
of financial position and the statement(s) of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income. These amendments are effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with 
early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected 
to have any impact on the company.

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment 
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception
The amendments address issues that have arisen in applying the 
investment entities exception under IFRS 10. The amendments to 
IFRS 10 clarify that the exemption from presenting consolidated 
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary 
of an investment entity, when the investment entity measures all 
of its subsidiaries at fair value.

Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that only a 
subsidiary of an investment entity that is not an investment entity 
itself and that provides support services to the investment entity 
is consolidated. All other subsidiaries of an investment entity 
are measured at fair value. The amendments to IAS 28 allow the 
investor, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value 
measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joint 
venture to its interests in subsidiaries.

These amendments must be applied retrospectively and are 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not 
expected to have any impact on the company.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued)

(b) New and amended standards, interpretations and 
improvements (continued)

Standards, improvements and amendments issued but not 
yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases 
The IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases on 13 January 2016. The scope 
of the new standard includes leases of all assets, with certain 
exceptions. A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, 
that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a 
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Key features:
• The new standard requires lessees to account for all 

leases under a single on-balance sheet model (sub-
ject to certain exemptions) in a similar way to finance 
leases under IAS 17.

• Lessees recognise a liability to pay rentals with a cor-
responding asset, and recognise interest expense and 
depreciation separately.

• The new standard includes two recognition exemp-
tions for lessees – leases of ’low-value’ assets (e.g., 
personal computer) and short-term leases (i.e., leases 
with a lease term of 12 months or less).

• Reassessment of certain key considerations (e.g., 
lease term, variable rents based on an index or rate, 
discount rate) by the lessee is required upon certain 
events.

• Lessor accounting is substantially the same as today’s 
lessor accounting, using IAS 17’s dual classification 
approach.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but not 
before an entity applies IFRS 15. The new standard permits 
a lessee to choose either a full retrospective or a modified 
retrospective transition approach.

(c) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can 
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being 
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined 
terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The company 
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria 
to determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The company 
has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue 
arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below 
must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to 
the buyer, usually upon delivery of products and customer 
acceptance and is stated net of value added tax, returns, rebates 
and discounts.

Interest income
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and 
interest bearing financial assets, interest income is recorded 
using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly 
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over 
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, 
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial 
asset or liability. Interest income is included in finance income 
in profit or loss.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised when the company’s right to receive 
the rent payment is established. The company sublets some of 
its station shops to dealers.

Commission income
Commission income arises from charges to stations for business 
provided through bon voyage customers. Commission income is 
recognised when the company’s right to receive the commission 
payment is established.

All other revenue is recognised at the time goods are supplied or 
services are provided.

(d) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition 
method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate 
of the consideration transferred measured at the acquisition-
date fair values and the amount of any non-controlling interest in 
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised 
in profit or loss as incurred.
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and 
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the 
acquisition date, except that:

• deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets 
related to employee benefit arrangements are recog-
nised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income 
Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

• liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based 
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based 
payment arrangements of the company entered into to 
replace share-based payment arrangements of the ac-
quiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date; and,

• assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held 
for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets 
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are mea-
sured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the 
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling 
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s 
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the 
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets 
acquired and the liabilities assumed. 
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued)

(d) Business combinations (continued)

If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of 
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds 
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any 
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the 
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the 
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain 
purchase gain. 

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests 
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net 
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either 
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate 
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable 
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a 
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling 
interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the 
basis specified in another IFRS. 

When the consideration transferred by the company in a 
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting 
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent 
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and 
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business 
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent 
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments 
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments 
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are 
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained 
during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year 
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that 
existed at the acquisition date. 

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the 
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement 
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration 
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as 
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its 
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent 
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is 
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance 
with IAS 39, or IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain 
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. 

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the 
company’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is 
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date 
when the company obtains control) and the resulting gain or 
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from 
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have 
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income 
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be 
appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete 
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination 
occurs, the company reports provisional amounts for the items 
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional 
amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see 
above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to 
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances 
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have 
affected the amounts recognised at that date.

(e) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost 
as established at the date of acquisition of the business less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to 
each of the company’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies 
of the combination. 
A cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill has been 
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently 
when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its 
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce 
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and 
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying 
amount of each asset in the unit. 

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or 
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed 
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable 
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the gain 
or loss on disposal.

(f) Leasing

(i) Determination

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it con-
tains a lease, is based on the substance of the arrangement and 
requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrange-
ment is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and 
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

(ii) Company as a lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the company substantially all the 
risk and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items are 
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as 
an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease 
term. Contingent rental payable are recognised as expenses in 
the period in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of 
the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. When an op-
erating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, 
any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty 
is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination 
takes place.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued)

(f) Leasing (continued)

(ii) Company as a lessee (continued)

Payments to acquire leasehold interests in land are treated as 
prepaid operating lease rentals and amortised over the period 
of the lease and recognised in profit or loss under operating 
expenses. 

(iii) Company as a lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all 
the risks and benefits of ownership of an asset are classified as 
operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an 
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as 
rental income.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the 
property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term 
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When 
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to 
be replaced at intervals, the company recognises such parts as 
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them 
accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, 
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are 
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised 
in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property, plant 
and equipment in equal annual instalments over their estimated 
useful lives. 

The annual rates in use are:

Freehold land                        Nil
Buildings                                        2% - 15%
Property, plant and machinery   5% - 25%  
Furniture, fittings and office equipment  10% - 33.3%

The company reviews the estimated useful lives, the methods 
of depreciation and residual values of property, plant and 
equipment at the end of each reporting period and adjusts 
them prospectively, if appropriate. During the financial year, no 
changes to the useful lives and residual values were identified 
by the Directors. 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part 
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised.

(h) Intangible assets acquired separately and in business 
combinations

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. Subsequently, they are reported at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and 
recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at 
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their 
cost). 

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in 
a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same 
basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately. 

Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be 
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest 
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and 
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite 
or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful 
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is 
an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible 
asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of 
each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the 
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits 
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation 
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in 
accounting estimates. 

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives 
is recognised in profit or loss in the expense category that is 
consistent with the function of the intangible assets. Intangible 
assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet 
available for use are not amortised but are tested for impairment 
at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the 
asset may be impaired. The company did not have any intangible 
assets with indefinite useful lives.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or 
loss when the asset is derecognised. 

The impairment policy on non-financial assets is discussed 
under note 1 (r).
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(continued)

(i) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for 
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through 
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This 
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable 
and the non-current asset (or disposal group) is available for 
immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be 
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for 
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of 
classification.

When the company is committed to a sale plan involving loss 
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of 
that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria 
described above are met, regardless of whether the company 
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after 
the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for 
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment 
and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once 
classified as held for sale.
Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented 
separately as current items in the statement of financial position.

Impairment of non-current assets held for sale

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is objective evidence that non-current assets held for sale are 
impaired. Non-current assets held for sale are deemed to be 
impaired if fair value less costs to sell is lower than carrying 
amounts. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the fair value less costs 
to sell, and is recognised in profit or loss. 

The company recognises a gain in profit or loss for any 
subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, 
but not in excess of the cumulative impairment loss that has 
been previously recognised. The company also recognises a 
gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of 
a non-current asset at the date of derecognition.

(j) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value.  Cost is determined on a weighted average cost basis 
and comprises purchase price and other costs incurred to bring 
the inventories to their present location and condition, together 
with refining costs as appropriate.  For products refined locally, 
costs are allocated over the refinery output in proportion to the 

appropriate world market prices.  Net realisable value is the 
estimate of the selling price in the ordinary course of business 
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs 
to make the sale. Specific provision is made for obsolete, slow 
moving and defective inventories.

 (k) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a 
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at 
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities 
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss) are added to the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities on initial recognition. 

Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit 
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified 
categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or 
loss’ (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-
sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The 
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial 
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All 
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised 
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases 
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation 
or convention in the marketplace. 

The company’s financial assets include bank and cash balances, 
trade and other receivables and amounts due from related 
companies.

Trade receivables and amounts due from related companies
Trade receivables and amounts due from related companies are 
classified as ‘loans and receivables’. After initial measurement, 
such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less 
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that 
are an integral part of the EIR.  The EIR amortisation is included 
in finance income in profit or loss. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in profit or loss in operating expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents include short term liquid investments which 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are 
within three months of maturity when acquired, less advances 
from the banks and related parties repayable within three months 
from the date of advance.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued)

 (k) Financial instruments (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Cash on hand and in banks and short term deposits which are 
held to maturity are carried at cost plus interest earned but not 
yet received at the reporting date.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, bank and cash 
balances are as defined above, net of outstanding overdrafts 
from banks and related parties.

Impairment	of	financial	assets

The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is 
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is deemed to be impaired if there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred 
since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) 
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that 
can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors 
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial 
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, 
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a 
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such 
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with 
defaults.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the company first 
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial 
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial 
assets that are not individually significant. If the company 
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for 
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant 
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with 
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses 
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues 
to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of 
impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit 
losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the 
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate. If a loan has a variable interest 
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the 
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of 
an allowance account and the loss is recognized in profit or loss. 

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment 
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the 
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery 
is credited to finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset 
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when 
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from 
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-
through arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or(b) the 
company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the 
asset. When the company has transferred its rights to receive 
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the 
risks and rewards of ownership. 

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of 
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the 
asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset 
to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that 
case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The 
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a 
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company 
has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower 
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum 
amount of consideration that the company could be required to 
repay.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification	as	debt	or	equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a company are classified 
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of 
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual 
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 
Equity instruments issued by the company are recognised at the 
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. The company’s 
equity instruments include redeemable preference shares.

Repurchase of the company’s own equity instruments is 
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss 
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or 
cancellation of the company’s own equity instruments.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued)

 (k) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at 
FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’.

The company’s financial liabilities include trade and other 
payables, borrowings and amounts due to holding company and 
related companies.

Other	financial	liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including borrowings) are recognised 
initially at fair value, and subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest 
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an 
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and 
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the 
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the 
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation 
process described above.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the 
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires. When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 
is treated as the derecognition of the original  liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting	of	financial	instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial 
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(l) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the company, transactions 
in currencies other than Kenyan shillings, the entity’s functional 
currency, i.e.  foreign currencies, are recognised at the rates of 
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end 
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. 
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the 
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items 
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency 

are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial 
transactions.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised 
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for 
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating 
to assets under construction for future productive use, which 
are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded 
as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency 
borrowings.

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items 
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of 
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in 
other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognised 
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

(m) Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently 
payable and deferred tax. 

(i)	 Current	tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. 
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of 
comprehensive income because of items of income or expense 
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are 
never taxable or deductible. The company’s liability for current 
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss 
is recognised outside profit or loss. Current tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

(ii)	 Deferred	tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if 
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial 
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets 
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable 
profit nor the accounting profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary 
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and 
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the 
company is able to control the reversal of the temporary 
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued)

(m) Tax (continued)

(ii)	Deferred	tax	(continued)

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary 
differences associated with such investments and interests are 
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be 
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of 
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the 
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and 
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities 
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from 
the manner in which the company expects, at the end of the 
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its 
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss 
is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a 
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate 
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

(iii)	Value	added	tax	

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value 
added tax, except:

(i)  When the  value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets 
or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in 
which case the value added tax is recognised as part of the 
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, 
as applicable, and

(ii)  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount 
of value added tax included

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable 
to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the statement of financial position.

(n) Employee entitlements

(i)	Retirement	benefit	costs
The company operates two defined contribution pension plans: 
one registered locally and the other registered off-shore for its 
employees. The assets of the plans are held in separate trustee 
administered funds. The plans are funded by contributions from 
both the employees and the company. Benefits are paid to 
retiring staff in accordance with the rules of the respective plans. 

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans 
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered 
service entitling them to the contributions. The company also 
contributes to a statutory defined contribution pension scheme, 
the National Social Security Fund (NSSF).  Contributions are 
determined by local statute. 

Contributions by the company in respect of retirement benefit 
costs are charged to profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

(ii) Leave
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they 
expected to be paid to employees. A provision is made for the 
estimated liability for annual leave at the reporting date. 

(iii) Bonus
An accrual is recognised for the amount expected to be paid 
under short-term cash bonus if the company has a present legal 
and constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of 
past service provided by the employee, the obligation can be 
estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation.
 
(o) Dividends

Dividends on ordinary and redeemable preference shares are 
charged to equity in the period in which they are declared.  

(p) Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) 
after tax by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and 
redeemable preference shares outstanding during the year.  

(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. 

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which 
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs 
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued)

(r) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying 
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered 
an impairment loss.  If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent 
of the impairment loss.  An asset’s recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value 
less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an 
individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount 
of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. When 
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to 
its recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair 
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, 
an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are 
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for 
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is an indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s 
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss 
is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions 
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited 
so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 December 
and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be 
impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the 
recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to which 
the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is 
less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. 
Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in 
future periods. Further details are contained in note 2 (b).

(s) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 
is probable that the company will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of 
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation.

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the company’s accounting policies, 
the Directors have made estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities within the next financial year. 

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying 
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are 
based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future 
periods, if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The key areas of judgement and sources of estimation uncertainty 
are as set out below:

(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies 

There are no critical judgements, apart from those involving 
estimations (see b below), that the directors have made in the 
process of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in 
financial statements.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, 
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the 
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
within the next financial year.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation 
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill 
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the 
directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from 
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order 
to calculate present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at 
31 December 2015 was KShs. 416,679,000 (2014 – KShs. 
416,679,000) and no impairment loss was recognised during the 
year.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

 (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual 
values of property, plant and equipment at the end of each 
reporting period. In reviewing the useful lives of property, plant 
and equipment, the company considers the remaining period over 
which an asset is expected to be available for use. Management 
also looks at the number of production or similar units expected 
to be obtained from the property, plant and equipment. Judgment 
and assumptions are required in estimating the remaining useful 
period and estimates of the number of production or similar units 
expected to be obtained from the property, plant and equipment. 
Further details on property, plant and equipment are given in 
note 1 (g) and 12.

Contingent liabilities

As disclosed in Note 26 to these financial statements, the 
company is exposed to various contingent liabilities in the 
normal course of business. The directors evaluate the status 
of these exposures on a regular basis to assess the probability 
of the company incurring related liabilities. However, provisions 
are only made in the financial statements where, based on the 
directors’ evaluation, a present obligation has been established. 

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The company reviews its trade receivables at each reporting date 
to assess whether an allowance for bad and doubtful should be 
recorded in profit or loss. In particular, judgement by management 
is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future 
cash flows when determining the level of allowance required.  
Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of 
factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes 
to the allowance. See Note 18 for further details.

Impairment	of	non-financial	assets 

At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amounts 
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there 
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment 
loss.  If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss.  Impairment exists when the carrying amount of 
an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its 
value in use.

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on 
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at 
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices 
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in 
use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The 

cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years 
and do not include restructuring activities that the company is 
not yet committed to or significant future investments that will 
enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The 
recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used 
for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected 
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation 
purposes. 

In assessing whether there is any indication that the tangible and 
intangible assets may be impaired, the company considers the 
following indications:

(i) there are observable indications that the asset’s value has 
declined during the period significantly more than would be 
expected as a result of the passage of time or normal use.

(ii) significant changes with an adverse effect on the entity have 
taken place during the period, or will take place in the near 
future, in the technological, market, economic or legal en-
vironment in which the entity operates or in the market to 
which an asset is dedicated.

(iii) market interest rates or other market rates of return on in-
vestments have increased during the period, and those in-
creases are likely to affect the discount rate used in calculat-
ing an asset’s value in use and decrease the asset’s recover-
able amount materially.

(iv) the carrying amount of the net assets of the entity is more 
than its market capitalisation.

(v) evidence is available of obsolescence or physical damage 
of an asset.

(vi) significant changes with an adverse effect on the entity have 
taken place during the period, or are expected to take place 
in the near future, in the extent to which, or manner in which, 
an asset is used or is expected to be used. These changes 
include the asset becoming idle, plans to discontinue or re-
structure the operation to which an asset belongs, plans to 
dispose of an asset before the previously expected date, 
and reassessing the useful life of an asset as finite rather 
than indefinite

(vii) evidence is available from internal reporting that indicates 
that the economic performance of an asset is, or will be, 
worse than expected.

Further details on property, plant and equipment are given in 
Note 12, goodwill in Note 14, intangible assets in Note 15.

Income	taxes	

The company is subject to income taxes in Kenya. Significant 
judgement is required in determining the company’s provision 
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations 
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the 
ordinary course of business. The company recognises liabilities 
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether 
additional taxes will be due. Where the final outcome of these 
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, 
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax 
provision in the period in which such determination is made.

Further details on income taxes are disclosed in Note 9 and 16.
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3. NET SALES ANALYSIS
  
The major business of the company is the sale of petroleum products, with other income comprising less than 5% of the total income. Net 
sales by business channel are shown below:-

(i) Business channels

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
General trade  20,324,907 22,701,062
Network 37,817,656 44,317,653
Aviation 8,742,419 13,427,612
Export and bulk   53,369,012  74,655,365
  
Total net sales 120,253,994 155,101,692

(ii) Geographical analysis

Local sales 114,610,033 146,246,601
Export sales     5,643,961     8,855,091
  
Total net sales 120,253,994 155,101,692

4. COST OF SALES

Product purchases 106,698,902 142,590,601
Other variable costs     6,564,665    5,760,944
  
 113,263,567 148,351,545

5. OTHER INCOME

Rental income 363,138 287,311
Commission income 89,698 86,989
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 41 16,591
Gain on disposal of assets classified as held for sale 225,351 6,686
Other income* 18,439 2,562
Doubtful debts written back (Note 18)       69,398        87,554
  
    766,065     487,693

*Other income relates to storage fee income on joint storage facilities with other oil marketers, as well as management fees where joint 
facilities with other oil marketers are run by the company.
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6. OPERATING EXPENSES

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Directors’ emoluments – fees (Note 19 (vii)) 2,300 1,600
                                         - other emoluments (Note 19 (vii)) 97,583 119,360
Payroll and staff costs[Note 6 (a)] 1,288,449 1,279,158
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 1,157,443 1,045,556
Amortisation of prepaid operating leases (Note 13) 131,856    117,342
Amortisation of intangible assets  (Note 15) 19,345 14,740
Repairs and maintenance 446,168 489,001
Technical assistance [Note 19 (v)] 423,894 342,761
Utilities 295,600 242,147
Operating lease rentals 182,380 144,930
Other expenses* 227,354 166,395
Legal and other professional fees 95,911 101,072
Advertising and promotion 278,880 212,252
Increase in doubtful debt provision (Note 18) 75,995 88,917
Travelling  99,927 107,445
Insurance 74,228 70,109
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 1,838 -
Auditor’s remuneration         5,948         6,069

 4,905,099 4,548,854

*Other expenses relate mainly to expensed reverse VAT, bank charges, and seminar and conference costs.

6 (a) PAYROLL AND STAFF COSTS

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Wages and salaries 914,675 896,924
Pension costs – defined contribution plan and NSSF 113,063 104,237
Staff medical costs 32,907 30,411
Staff training costs 12,811 18,196
Provision for accrued leave 9,446 8,443
Staff motor vehicle, mileage and other costs    205,547    220,947
  
Total	personnel	expenses	 1,288,449	 1,279,158

Average number of employees (permanent staff)            366            378

7. (a)  FINANCE INCOME

Interest income on bank deposits 127,073       8,541

(b)  FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on borrowings 39,428 272,336

(c) NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS 

Realised foreign exchange loss 363,584 153,363
Unrealised foreign exchange gain    (43,242)       (4,177)
  
Net	foreign	exchange	loss	 320,342	 			149,186
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8.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The	profit	before	tax	is	arrived	at	after	charging:	 2015	 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Staff costs [Note 6 (a)] 1,288,449 1,279,158
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 12) 1,157,443 1,045,556
Amortisation of prepaid operating leases (Note 13) 131,856 117,342
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 15) 19,345 14,740
Loss on disposal of intangible assets (Note 6) 1,838 -
Directors’ emoluments (Note 6):  
 - Fees 2,300 1,600
 - Other emoluments 97,583 119,360
Auditors’ remuneration (Note 6)     5,948       6,069
  
And	after	crediting:	 	

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (Note 5) 41 16,591
Gain on disposal of assets classified as held for sale (Note 5) 225,351     6,686

9. TAX

(i) Tax charge

Current income tax:   
- Current income tax charge 1,006,750 949,700
- Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years       29,306      (4,112)
  
 1,036,056 945,588
Deferred tax:  
-  Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences [Note 16 (ii)]     (32,363)    (93,671)
  
 1,003,693   851,917

(ii) Reconciliation of tax charge to expected tax based on accounting profit

Accounting profit before tax 2,618,696 2,276,005
  
Tax at the applicable rate of 30%  785,609 682,802
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years 29,306 (4,112)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax     188,778    173,227
  
Tax	charge	 1,003,693	 		851,917
  
(iii) Tax recoverable/(payable)

Balance at 1 January (32,416) (510,394)
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous years (29,306) 4,112
Charge to profit or loss (1,006,750) (949,700)
Payments during the year 1,085,418 1,423,566
  
Balance at 31 December       16,946      (32,416)
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit after tax attributable to shareholders by the weighted average 
number of ordinary and redeemable preference shares in issue during the year, as shown below:

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Profit after tax 1,615,003 1,424,088
  
Basic earnings per share  
Weighted average number of ordinary and redeemable  
preference shares used in the calculation of   
basic earnings per share (in thousands of shares)    629,542   629,542
  
Basic and diluted earnings per share (KShs)              2.57         2.26

Diluted Earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as there were no potentially dilutive instruments outstanding at 
the end of the reporting period.

11. DIVIDENDS
 
(a) Unclaimed dividends 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

The movement in unclaimed dividend is as follows:
  
At 1 January 6,748 4,955
Final dividend declared 2014 and 2013 440,680 377,725
Dividend paid  (440,680) (375,932)
  
Balance at 31 December        6,748       6,748
  
(b) Dividends declared/proposed in respect of the year  
Proposed for approval at the Annual General Meeting 
(not recognised as a liability as at 31 December):   484,748  440,680

Dividends per share on declared/proposed dividends for the year 
(based on number of shares per Note 21) KShs 0.77 KShs 0.70
  
In respect of the current year, the Directors propose that a first and final dividend of KShs. 0.77 (2014-KShs. 0.70) per share equivalent to 
a total sum of KShs 484,747,693 (2014: KShs 440,679,721) be paid to the shareholders. 

The final dividend is subject to approval by owners of the company at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability 
in these financial statements. 

Withholding	tax

Payment of dividends is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10% for non-resident owners of the company and 5% for resident share-
holders. For resident owners of the company, withholding tax is only deductible where the shareholding is below 12.5%.
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(i)  Year ended 31 December 2015

  Property,  Furniture, Capital 
	 Land	and	 Plant	and	 fittings	and	 work-in-	
 buildings machinery equipment Progress Total
 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

COST 
At 1 January 2015 3,925,708 12,206,041   780,744  553,436 17,465,929
Additions 172,641     853,347 63,908 406,589 1,496,485
Transfers     82,563       329,702      25,861 (438,126)               -
Disposals       (7,188)        (40,992)     (1,902)                -       (50,082)
     
 At 31 December 2015 4,173,724 13,348,098 868,611  521,899 18,912,332
     
DEPRECIATION     
At 1 January 2015 1,580,425   6,576,107  689,718              - 8,846,250
Charge for the year 197,895 906,911 52,637 - 1,157,443
Disposals    (3,335)      (29,070)       (1,739)               -     (34,144)
     
At 31 December 2015 1,774,985 7,453,948   740,616               - 9,969,549
     
NET CARRYING AMOUNT     
At 31 December 2015 2,398,739 5,894,150   127,995 521,899 8,942,783

(ii) Year ended 31 December 2014

COST
At 1 January 2014 3,727,371 11,588,528  753,351  225,737 16,294,987
Additions 118,721 688,177 27,966 479,325 1,314,189
Transfers  91,754 53,272 6,600 (151,626) -
Disposals     (12,138)     (123,936)       (7,173)                 -     (143,247)
     
 At 31 December 2014 3,925,708 12,206,041   780,744  553,436 17,465,929
     
DEPRECIATION     
At 1 January 2014 1,399,057   5,890,728 646,216                - 7,936,001
Charge for the year 191,629 803,407 50,520 - 1,045,556
Disposals      (10,261)      (118,028)      (7,018)               -    (135,307)
     
At 31 December 2014  1,580,425   6,576,107  689,718               - 8,846,250
     
NET CARRYING AMOUNT  
At 31 December 2014 2,345,283   5,629,934    91,026 553,436  8,619,679 
    
(iii)  Capital work-in-progress

The capital work-in-progress relates mainly to construction work (e.g. rebranding and remodelling of stations) and technical installations 
being undertaken by the company. 

There were no borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

Based on an impairment review performed by the directors as at 31 December 2015 no indications of impairment of property, plant and 
equipment were identified (2014: none).
   
Commitments to acquire property, plant and equipment as at year end are included in note 26 (c).
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(iv)  Impact of the Enactment of the Land Registration Act No. 3 2012 on the Company’s Land Holding Status 
The revised Constitution, enacted on 27 August 2010, introduced significant changes in the landholding by non-citizens. The Constitution 
no longer allows foreigners and foreign bodies to own freehold land and leasehold land in excess of 99 years. Freehold land and leasehold 
land of more than 99 years owned by foreigners and foreign bodies automatically become 99 year leases upon enactment of the required 
legislation under Articles 65 (4) of the revised constitution. These changes in the landholding took effect on 2 May 2012 upon the enact-
ment of the Land Registration Act No. 3 of 2012.

As per the definition in Article 65 (3) of the Constitution, the company is a non-citizen, since it is not wholly owned by Kenyan citizens, and 
hence the status of its freehold land changes to 99 years lease.
 
The company has assessed the impact of the amended land laws, and concluded that they do not impact significantly on these financial 
statements. Under the revised International Accounting standards No. 17 (IAS 17), a 99 year lease qualifies for a finance lease classifica-
tion if the lessor transfers significantly risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the land to the company. Accordingly, the 99 year 
lease would qualify as finance leases. The company currently accounts for its land previously classified as freehold in a similar manner 
to finance leases.
 
The company is waiting for the National Land Commission to issue guidelines that will operationalise the provisions of the constitution 
and the revised land laws. The company will continue to reassess the impact of the revised land laws on the financial statements as the 
guidelines are issued.

13. PREPAID OPERATING LEASES

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

COST  
At 1 January 1,493,680 1,381,944
Additions    248,078    111,736
  
At 31 December 1,741,758 1,493,680
  
AMORTISATION  
  
At 1 January 785,504 668,162
Amortisation for the year   131,856     117,342
  
At 31 December   917,360     785,504
  
NET CARRYING AMOUNT   824,398    708,176

The prepaid operating leases relate to amounts that the company has paid for the leased land on which most of its stations and depots 
stand. 

14.  GOODWILL

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

COST  
Balance at beginning and end of year  528,879 528,879
  
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES  
Balance at beginning and end of year   (112,200)  (112,200)
  
CARRYING AMOUNT    416,679     416,679

The goodwill is analysed below:

(a) Goodwill arising from acquisition of Elf Oil Kenya Limited

Cost    448,804    448,804
  
Accumulated impairment losses   (112,200)   (112,200)
  
    336,604    336,604
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14.  GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill amounting to KShs. 448,804,000 arose from the acquisition of a subsidiary, Elf Oil Kenya Limited, in March 2001. With effect 
from 1 January 2005, the operations of Elf Oil Kenya Limited were merged with those of Total Kenya Limited and this was achieved through 
a business sale agreement which resulted in the transfer of all Elf Oil Kenya Limited business, assets and liabilities to Total Kenya Limited.

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating units

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to two cash generating units as follows: 

§	Network service station operations – cash flows and profits from acquired stations
§	Rental fees income generation – fees paid by dealers operating acquired stations

Both units continue to generate positive cash flows and goodwill has been globally allocated to both. The recoverable amount of the 
cash generating units is based on value-in-use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on annual network business financial 
budgets and a long term business plan approved by management covering a ten year period.  

The cash flows from the cash generating units are based on expected return on capital invested at between 10% to 25% and a stable 
market share. Management is of the opinion that any possible reasonable change in these assumptions would not cause the global 
carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount.

At 31 December 2015, no impairment loss was assessed (2014: nil).

(b) Goodwill arising from acquisition of Total Marketing Kenya Limited

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Goodwill - Cost  80,075 80,075

With effect from 1 November 2009, the operations of Total Marketing Kenya Limited were merged with those of Total Kenya Limited. 
This was achieved through a business sale agreement which resulted in the transfer of all Total Marketing Kenya Limited business, 
assets and liabilities to Total Kenya Limited. Goodwill amounting to KShs. 6,060,047,000 arose from this acquisition of Total Marketing 
Kenya Limited.

Goodwill amounting to KShs. 5,979,972,000 representing the excess fair values over the net carrying amount of assets was transferred to 
property, plant and equipment following results of a valuation exercise that was carried out in 2010, leaving a balance of KShs. 80,075,000. 

Allocation of goodwill to cash-generating units

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to the following cash generating unit: 

Depot - cash flows and profits from acquired depot

The recoverable amount of the depot  as a cash-generating unit is determined based on a value-in-use calculation which uses cash flow 
projections based on financial budgets approved by the directors covering a ten-year period, and a discount rate of 11% per annum 
(2014: 11% per annum). Cash flows beyond that ten-year period have been extrapolated using a steady 3% (2014: 3%) per annum growth 
rate in sales volume. 

The directors believe that a 3% per annum growth rate is reasonable in view of the petroleum market projections within the region and, 
their intention to focus the company’s operations in this market. 

The directors believe that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause 
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.

At 31 December 2015, no impairment loss was assessed (2014: nil).

The two subsidiary companies, Elf Oil Kenya Limited and Total Marketing Kenya Limited are dormant and no longer operational having 
transferred their assets and liabilities to Total Kenya Limited. 
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS  

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

COST   
At 1 January 443,896 423,152
Additions   14,675    20,744
Disposals    (1,839)             -
  
At 31 December 456,732 443,896
  
AMORTISATION  
  
At 1 January 349,890 335,150
Charge for the year 19,345   14,740
Accumulated depreciation on disposals           (1)              -

At 31 December 369,234 349,890
  
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December   87,498   94,006 

The intangible assets relate to accounting, payroll and other computer software acquired by the company.

16. DEFERRED TAX ASSET

(i) The net deferred tax asset is attributable to the following:

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
 
Accelerated depreciation 157,037 255,662
Unrealised exchange gain    (168,060) (533,638)
Unrealised exchange loss 139,095 460,384
Leave provision  19,539 16,509
Provision for retirement benefits  23,135 25,510
Bonus provision  5,165 1,601
Stock provision  166,033 92,135
Legal  costs provision   146,971 144,960
Provision for doubtful debts         6,571               -
 
Net	deferred	tax	asset	 		495,486	 	463,123

(ii) Movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:    
At 1 January 463,123 369,452
Deferred tax credit recognized in profit or loss (Note 9 (i))    32,363   93,671 
  
At 31 December  495,486 463,123

Deferred tax is estimated on all temporary differences under the liability method using the currently enacted tax rate of 30% 
(2014 - 30%). 

17. INVENTORIES

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Refined products 8,199,561 8,836,571
Raw material and crude oil 1,362,571 1,830,036
Consumables and accessories      455,845       492,457
  
 10,017,977 11,159,064

During 2015, no expense was recognised in cost of sales for inventories carried at net realisable value (2014: KShs 236 million).
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Trade receivables 9,286,641 8,448,793
Allowance for doubtful debts   (473,470)  (466,873)
  
 8,813,171 7,981,920
  
Recoverable taxes 518,584 581,323
Other receivables and prepayments       86,549       45,727
  
 9,418,304 8,608,970

Recoverable taxes relate to advance import duties on petroleum products and value added tax. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing 
and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.

Other receivables and prepayments relate to amounts advanced to and recoverable from staff and other advance payments. Other 
receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 60- 90 days.
  
As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of an initial value of KShs. 473 million (2014: KShs 467 million) were impaired and fully 
provided for. See below for the movement in the provision for impairment of receivables.

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
At beginning of year (466,873) (465,510)
Increase in doubtful debt provision in the year (Note 6) (75,995) (88,917)
Doubtful debts write back (Note 5)     69,398    87,554 

At end of year  (473,470) (466,873)
 

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
The parent of the company is Total Outre Mer while the ultimate holding company is Total S.A, both incorporated in France.

There are other companies which are related to Total Kenya Limited through common shareholding.

Outstanding balances arising from sale and purchase of goods and services to/from related companies at the year-end are as follows:
 
(i) Amounts due from related companies

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Air Total International 320,825 994,817
NETCO Management Limited 201,302 118,063
Total Uganda Limited 717,103 703,617
Total RDC S.A.R.L 122,525 124,375
Other related companies         3,285       2,697
  
 1,365,040 1,943,569

(ii) Amounts due to related companies

Total Uganda Limited - 2,936
Total  Marketing Services  - 11,559
Total Malawi Limited 941 945
Total Tanzania Limited 303 2,164
Total Marketing Middle East      78,082                 -
  
     79,326     17,604

(iii) Amounts due to holding company
  
Total Outre-Mer 2,979,970   194,100
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19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (continued)

(iv) Financial overdraft from related party

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Financial overdraft from Total SA Treasury (Note 24) (4,069,010) (5,919,348)
  

Financial overdraft from related party relates to an overdraft from Total SA Treasury department. Additional disclosures for the financial 
overdraft are in Note 24. 

(v) Transactions with related companies

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Purchases of petroleum products from the holding company 65,043,858 82,123,116
Purchases of petroleum products from other related companies 495,412 232,758
Revenue on sale of petroleum products to related companies 5,609,000 8,765,000
Purchases of plant and equipment from the holding company 
and other related companies 142,692 316,000
Technical assistance (Note 6)      423,894      342,761

(vi) Key management compensation

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management were as follows:
 

  
Salaries and other short-term employment benefits 171,131 210,092
Post-employment benefits    6,748      6,983
  
 177,879 217,075 

(vii) Directors’ remuneration 

Fees for services as a director     2,300     1,600

Other emoluments   
Salaries and other short-term employment benefits 96,014 116,716
Post-employment benefits     1,569     2,644
  
   97,583 119,360
  
 99,883 120,960

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees 
provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the company has not recorded 
any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (2014: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year 
through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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20. NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Property, plant and equipment 22,324 27,529
Prepaid operating leases    2,040   2,040
  
 24,364 29,569

The movement in the non-current assets classified as held for sale is as follows:
  
At 1 January    29,569  32,668 
Disposed during the year     (5,205)  (3,099)
  
At 31 December    24,364  29,569

The company intends to dispose off some service stations and other facilities in the next 12 months. 

No impairment loss was recognized on assets classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2015 as the expected proceeds on disposal 
exceed the net carrying amounts of the assets.

21. SHARE CAPITAL 

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Authorised ordinary shares   
181,630,000 ordinary shares of KShs 5 each     908,150     908,150
  
Authorised redeemable preference shares  
123,478,388 shares of KShs 31.58 each 3,899,447 3,899,447
  
Authorised redeemable preference shares  
330,999,364 shares of KShs 15.71 each 5,200,000 5,200,000
  
Issued ordinary share capital 875,324 875,324

Issued redeemable preference share capital  9,099,447  9,099,447
  
 9,974,771 9,974,771
  
Issued	capital	comprises:	  
  
175,064,706 fully paid ordinary shares of KShs 5 each 875,324 875,324
  
123,478,388 fully paid redeemable preference shares  of KShs 31.58 each 3,899,447 3,899,447
  
330,999,364 fully paid redeemable preference shares of KShs 15.71 each  5,200,000 5,200,000
  
 9,974,771 9,974,771
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 2015  2014 
    
Fully paid ordinary and preference shares     Number of  share Number of share
 Shares  capital Shares capital
	 ‘000’	 KShs’000	 ‘000’	 KShs’000

At 1 January      
Ordinary shares 175,065 875,324 175,065 875,324
Redeemable preference shares 454,477 9,099,447 454,477 9,099,447
    
At 31 December  629,542 9,974,771 629,542 9,974,771

The fully paid ordinary shares, which have a par value of KShs 5, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.

The redeemable non-cumulative preference shares, which have issue prices of KShs 31.58 and KShs 15.71, do not have any voting rights 
but have the same rights to dividends as the ordinary shares. The right to redemption of the redeemable preference shares is at the discre-
tion of the company hence they have been classified as equity.

22. SHARE PREMIUM

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
As  at 1 January and 31 December 1,967,520 1,967,520

This is a non-distributable reserve as per the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act.

The share premium is the excess of the cash received for ordinary shares above the par value of KShs 5.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
 
 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Trade payables 7,901,825 7,438,151
Other payables and accruals 1,588,410 1,086,940
  
Total payables 9,490,235 8,525,091
  
Classified as:  
Non-current 1,244,627 1,192,167
Current 8,245,608 7,332,924
  
 9,490,235 8,525,091

Terms and conditions of the trade and other payables

Trade payables to non-related parties are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on a 30 day terms.  Interest is only charged on 
trade payables due to purchase of petroleum products at rates set by the Open Tender Supply (OTS) agreement.

Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of six months.

Non-current other payables mainly relate to LPG cylinder deposits and legal provisions.

21. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
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24. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Financial overdraft – from Total SA Treasury  4,069,010 5,919,348
Bank overdraft – from local banks                  - 1,421,070

 4,069,010 7,340,418

Financial overdraft – from Total SA Treasury

The company received an overdraft from a related party, Total SA Treasury whose interest is pegged to the Libor plus a margin.  No 
collateral is held for this facility.

Bank overdraft – from local banks

Bank overdraft facilities are held with various financial institutions, primarily stable local subsidiaries of international banks, and are 
unsecured. The facilities are operated within designated limits and under the terms and conditions stipulated by the financial institutions. 

25. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(i) Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

  2015 2014
	 Notes	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
    
Profit	before	tax	 	 2,618,696	 2,276,005
Adjustments for:   
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  573,750 190,809
Finance income   7 (a) (127,073) (8,541)
Finance costs   7 (b) 39,428 272,336
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 12 1,157,443 1,045,556
Amortisation of prepaid leases and intangible assets   151,201 132,082
Gain on disposal of assets held for sale   5 (225,351) (6,686)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets   6 1,838 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment   5                (41)      (16,591)
     
Operating	profit	before	working	capital	changes	 	 4,189,891	 3,884,970
   
Decrease in inventories  1,141,087 3,794,150
Increase in trade and other receivables  (809,334) (479,978)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  965,144 (425,369)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to holding company   2,785,870 (12,418,744)
Decrease/(increase) in balances due from related companies      640,251        (14,902)
   
Cash generated from operations  8,912,909  (5,659,873)

(ii) Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents   
   
Cash and bank balances  2,615,560      498,965
   
Financial overdraft – from Total SA Treasury  24 (4,069,010) (5,919,348)
Bank overdraft – from local banks 24                    -  (1,421,070)
  
  (4,069,010) (7,340,418)
   
  (1,453,450)   (6,841,453)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and in banks, short term liquid 
investments which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which were within three months of maturity when acquired, net 
of outstanding financial and bank overdrafts.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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26. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 
(a) Contingent liabilities

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Total commitments given     752,511 1,431,408
  
Total commitments received   1,523,582 1,630,750

Commitments given include primarily customs bonds. The bonds are held in the ordinary course of business.  No losses are anticipated 
in respect of these contingent liabilities. Commitments received include primarily customer guarantees. Commitments received/given are 
all held with local banks.

(b) Contingent liability relating to parent company

An amount of KShs 248 million (USD 2,427,388) exists as at 31 December 2015 (2014: KShs 220 million (USD 2,427,388) for an un-
settled invoice to the parent company, Total Outre-mer, and  has not been provided for in the Total Kenya Limited’s books as the goods 
were not received by Total Kenya Limited. Management is keenly following up on the matter and is of the view that the ultimate resolu-
tion of this matter will not have any impact on the company’s financial position or liquidity.
 
(c) Capital commitments 

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Authorised and contracted for        623,622     486,783
  
Authorised but not contracted for     1,595,754 2,143,403

27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 

Maturing within one year 46,770 43,872
Maturing over one year to five years 159,947 206,717
 
Total operating lease commitments 206,717 250,589

All the commitments relate to future rent payable for the head office (Regal plaza) based on the existing contracts. The lease agreement 
is between Total Kenya Limited and Regal Plaza Limited and has no provisions relating to contingent rent payable. The terms of renewal 
are a written notice to the lessor at least three calendar months before the expiration of the lease and the lessor will grant to the lessee 
a new lease of the said premises for a further term of six years at such rent as may be mutually agreed by the parties.

The escalation rate is not a fixed percentage and is factored into the operating lease commitment values presented above.

28. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees. The assets of the plans are held sepa-
rately from those of the company in funds under the control of trustees. Where employees leave the plans prior to full vesting of the con-
tributions, the contributions payable by the company are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

Also, the company contributes to the statutory defined contribution pension scheme, the National Social Security Fund.  Contributions to 
the statutory scheme are determined by local statute.  Contributions to this scheme during the year amounted to KShs 4,277,880 (2014: 
KShs 2,840,680).

The total expense recognised in profit or loss for the year of KShs 113 million (2014: KShs 104 million) represents contributions payable 
to the plans by the company at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The company manages its capital to ensure that it is able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders 
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2014.

The capital structure of the company consists of debt, which includes borrowings disclosed in notes 24 and 25 respectively, less bank 
and cash balances and equity attributable to equity holders, comprising issued capital, share premium as disclosed in notes 21 and 22 
and retained earnings. 

Gearing ratio 

The gearing ratio at the end of the year was as follows:

 Notes 2015 2014
	 	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
   
Short term borrowings  24 4,069,010 7,340,418
Bank and cash balances  25 (ii) (2,615,560)     (498,965)
   
Net borrowings    1,453,450   6,841,453
   
Equity*  17,599,746 16,425,423
   
Net debt to equity ratio               8.3%           41.7%
 
*Equity includes capital and reserves.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The company’s financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, amounts due to holding company, amounts due to related compa-
nies and short-term borrowings and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the com-
pany’s operations and provide guarantees to support its operations.

The company’s financial assets include trade and other receivables, amounts due from related companies and cash and cash equivalents 
that derive directly from its operations.

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The company’s corporate treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic financial markets, moni-
tors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by 
degree and magnitude of risks. 

The company’s treasury function reports monthly to the Group’s treasury, a section of the Group that monitors risks and policies imple-
mented to mitigate risk exposures. The Group’s Treasury reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are sum-
marized below.

(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Market risk that affects the company is foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. 

Financial instruments affected by market risk include short term borrowings and deposits with financial institutions. 

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign ex-
change rates. The company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the company’s operating ac-
tivities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and certain monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currency mainly trade and other receivables, bank balances, short term borrowings, trade and other payables, and amounts due to and 
due from related companies. 

To manage the foreign exchange risk, the company maintains bank accounts in foreign denominated currencies mainly US dollars and 
Euro to facilitate transactions in foreign currency. The company also negotiates with its bankers to get favorable exchange rates when 
converting foreign currencies to the Kenya shilling. The company also purchases its products mainly in US Dollars and mainly buys US 
Dollars via spot deals as opposed to forward deals. 

There has been no change to the company’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(i) Market risk (continued)

(a) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The main currency exposure that the company is exposed to relate to the fluctuation of the Kenya Shillings exchange rates with the US 
Dollar and Euro  currencies.

The carrying amounts of the company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period 
are as follows:

 EUR USD Total 
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

31 December 2015    
  
Assets   
Trade and other receivables 4,181 2,015,191 2,019,372
Bank balances 552,870     429,455    982,325 
   
Total assets 557,051 2,444,646 3,001,697
 
Liabilities   
Financial and bank overdrafts  (298,367) (3,770,643) (4,069,010)
Trade and other payables (1,658,407)    (753,990) (2,412,397)
 
Total liabilities (1,956,774) (4,524,633) (6,481,407)
   
Net	exposure	position	 (1,399,723)	 (2,079,987)	 (3,479,710)
   

31 December 2014   
 
Assets   
Trade and other receivables 1,367 2,726,958 2,728,325
Bank balances     212,326        97,133      309,459 
   
Total assets    213,693  2,824,091  3,037,784

Liabilities   
Financial and bank overdrafts  - (5,919,348) (5,919,348)
Trade and other payables   (287,398)     (560,654)    (848,052) 
   
Total liabilities   (287,398)  (6,480,002) (6,767,400) 
   
Net	exposure	position	 				(73,705)	 (3,655,911)	 (3,729,616)
   
The following sensitivity analysis shows how profit and equity would change if the Kenya Shilling had depreciated against the other cur-
rencies by 10% at the end of the reporting period with all other variables held constant. The reverse would also occur if the Kenya Shilling 
appreciated with all other variables held constant.

The US Dollar impact is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding US Dollar trade and other receivables, bank balances, and 
payables at the year-end. The Euro impact is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding Euro bank and payables balances at the 
year-end.

The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the year-end exposure does not reflect the exposure 
during the year.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
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(i) Market risk (continued)

(a) Foreign currency risk (continued)

	 															 Profit	or	loss		 	Equity	

 2015 2014 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
    
USD impact 207,998 365,591 145,599 255,914
Euro impact 139,972     7,370 97,980      5,159

(b) Interest rate risk 

The company is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the 
company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. 

The carrying amounts of the company’s financial instruments with exposures to interest rates risk are as below:

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Short term  borrowings (Note 24) 4,069,010 7,340,418
 
 
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding for the whole year. 

If interest rates had been 0.5% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the company’s profit before tax for the year ended 
31 December 2015 would decrease/increase by KShs 20.3 million (2014: by KShs 36.7 million) and the company’s equity would decrease/
increase by KShs 14.2 million (2014: by KShs 25.7 million). This is mainly attributable to the company’s exposure to interest rates on its 
short-term borrowings.

(ii) Credit risk 

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the company arising from a default by counterparty on its contractual obligations. The 
company’s policy requires that it deals only with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a 
means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. This information is supplied by independent rating agencies where available. 
If not available, the company uses other publicly available financial information and its own trading records to rate its major customers. 
The company’s exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions 
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and ap-
proved by the risk management committee. 

(a) Trade receivables 
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing credit evalu-
ation is performed on the customers’ ability to service the credit advanced to them and, where appropriate, credit guarantee is requested.

The company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar 
characteristics. The company defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities. The credit risk on liquid 
funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. 

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
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(b) Cash deposits
Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the company’s treasury department in accordance with the company’s policy. Invest-
ments of surplus funds are made only with approved banks. The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the 
statement of financial position at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is the carrying amounts as illustrated below except for financial guarantees. 
The company’s maximum exposure relating to financial guarantees is noted in the liquidity table. 

The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 is analysed in the table below:

31 December 2015     
 Fully Past   Impaired    Total
 Performing Due amount 
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
    
Amounts due from related  companies 1,365,040              -               -  1,365,040

Trade receivables                       
 
Network 457,972  - 96,329 554,301

Non-network  8,355,199              - 377,141 8,732,340
    
 8,813,171              - 473,470 9,286,641
 
Other receivables 86,549 - - 86,549
Bank balances 2,615,560               -               - 2,615,560
    

31 December 2014    
 
Amounts due from related  companies 1,943,569                -                - 1,943,569
 
Trade receivables    
 
Network 577,260 - 92,647 669,907
Non-network 5,727,029 1,677,631    374,226 7,778,886
 
   6,304,289 1,677,631   466,873 8,448,793
 

Other receivables 45,727 - - 45,727
Bank balances     498,965                 -                -    498,965

The default risk on the customers under the fully performing category is very low as they are active in paying their debts as they continue 
trading. The past due amounts have not been provided for since the amounts continue to be paid. The impaired amounts have been fully 
provided for in these financial statements.

Collateral held on trade receivables
The company holds collateral against credit advanced to customers in the form of cash deposits and bank guarantees. Estimates of fair 
value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of advancing the credit and generally are not updated except when a 
receivable is individually assessed as impaired. 

Collateral is usually not held against bank balances and amounts due from related parties, and no such collateral was held at 31 December 
2015 or 2014.

Management assessed that the fair value of the collaterals – cash deposits and bank guarantees approximate their carrying amounts 
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. 

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(ii) Credit risk (continued)
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An estimate of the fair value of collateral held against financial assets is shown below:

Fair value of collateral held against trade receivables as at 31 December 2015 was:

 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Cash deposit collateral  
Network 345,164 261,505
Non-Network 313,066 297,850
  
Bank guarantees collateral  
Network 253,585 266,435
Non-Network 1,256,878 1,130,993
  
Total 2,168,693 1,956,783

There is no collateral held against cash and cash equivalents.

(iii) Liquidity risk 

The company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously 
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Included in financing 
facilities section of this note, is a listing of additional undrawn facilities that the company has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

Financing facilities  
 
 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Unsecured overdraft, including financial overdraft from 
Total SA Treasury, payable on call and reviewed annually  
  
Amount used   4,069,010    7,340,418
  
Amount unused 13,850,990 13,058,782

The table below shows the breakdown of amounts used with the main banks at the end of the reporting period.

Bank 2015 2014
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
  
Citibank NA - 323,588
Total Treasury 4,069,010 5,919,348
Bank of Africa Kenya Limited                   - 1,097,482
  
Total 4,069,010 7,340,418

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
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 The following table analyses the company’s financial liabilities that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. 

At 31 December 2015

   Up to 1-3   4-12 > 
 1 month    months Months   1 year Total
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
     
Bank overdrafts 4,069,010 - - - 4,069,010
Trade payables 7,901,825 - - - 7,901,825
Financial guarantees given                    -           - 752,511             -      752,511
     
Total	financial	liabilities	 11,970,835	 										-	 752,511	 											-	 12,723,346

At 31 December 2014
     
Bank overdrafts 7,340,418 - - - 7,340,418
Trade payables 7,438,151 - - - 7,438,151
Financial guarantees given                     -           - 1,431,408              -   1,431,408

Total	financial	liabilities	 14,778,569	 										-																			1,431,408	 												-	 16,209,977

31. INCORPORATION
Total Kenya Limited is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act. The parent 
company is Total Outre Mer while the ultimate holding company is Total S.A, both incorporated in France.

32. CURRENCY
The financial statements are presented in thousands of Kenya Shillings.

33.  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no subsequent events that have occurred after the reporting period which are either to be disclosed or to be adjusted in the 
financial statements that could materially affect the financial statements.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
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APPENDIX I

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT  2015    2014 2013 2012 2011
	 KShs’000’		 		KShs’000’		 		KShs’000’		 		KShs’000’		 		KShs’000’
     
ASSETS     
Non-current assets     
Property, plant ,equipment and  leases  9,767,181   9,327,855   9,072,768   8,848,764   9,174,239 
Goodwill   416,679   416,679   416,679   416,679   416,679 
Intangible assets  87,498   94,006   88,002   61,858   121,342 
Deferred tax asset   495,486   463,123   369,452   304,844   146,955 
      
Total non-current assets  10,766,844   10,301,663   9,946,901   9,632,145   9,859,215 
     
Current assets     
Inventories   10,017,977   11,159,064   14,953,214   13,794,942   12,039,014 
Other current assets  10,800,290   10,552,539   10,071,877   9,012,764   11,578,405 
Cash and cash equivalents  2,615,560   498,965   4,979,505   499,174   1,670,112 
     
Total current assets  23,433,827   22,210,568   30,004,596   23,306,880   25,287,531 
     
Assets classified as held for sale  24,364   29,569   32,668   41,579   51,420 
  23,458,191   22,240,137   30,037,264   23,348,459   25,338,951 
     
TOTAL ASSETS  34,225,035   32,541,800   39,984,165   32,980,604   35,198,166 
     
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
Equity     
Share capital   9,974,771   9,974,771   9,974,771   9,974,771   4,774,771 
Share premium   1,967,520   1,967,520   1,967,520   1,967,520   1,967,520 
Retained earnings  5,657,455   4,483,132   3,436,769   2,250,385   2,452,527 
     
Total equity  17,599,746   16,425,423   15,379,060   14,192,676   9,194,818 
     
Non-current liabilities     
Medium term loan  -     -     -     -     2,574,000 
Trade and other payables   1,244,627   1,192,167   1,117,028   854,765   446,584 
     
Total  Non-current liabilities  1,244,627   1,192,167   1,117,028   854,765   3,020,584 
     
Current liabilities     
Trade and other payables   11,311,652   7,583,792   20,993,447   13,772,509   11,281,598 
Short term borrowings   4,069,010   7,340,418   2,494,630   4,160,654   11,701,166 
     
Total current liabilities  15,380,662   14,924,210   23,488,077   17,933,163   22,982,764 
     
     
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  34,225,035   32,541,800   39,984,165   32,980,604   35,198,166 
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APPENDIX II

FIVE-YEAR SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 2015    2014 2013 2012 2011
	 KShs’000’		 		KShs’000’		 		KShs’000’		 		KShs’000’		 		KShs’000’

Gross sales  138,027,279   170,725,560   154,626,092   119,788,989   105,590,360 
Indirect taxes and duties  (17,773,285)  (15,623,868)  (12,908,050)  (12,338,455)  (13,055,311)
     
Net sales   120,253,994   155,101,692   141,718,042   107,450,534   92,535,049 
     
Cost of sales   (113,263,567)  (148,351,545)  (135,371,011)  (101,577,075)  (87,860,697)
Gross	profit	 	6,990,427		 	6,750,147		 	6,347,031		 	5,873,459		 	4,674,352 
     
Operating expenses and other income  (4,139,034)  (4,061,161)  (3,867,221)  (4,350,576)  (3,282,363)
Finance (costs)/income and net foreign 
exchange (loss)/gain  (232,697)  (412,981)  (395,293)  (1,587,184)  (1,334,139)
     
Profit/(loss)	before	tax	 	2,618,696		 	2,276,005		 	2,084,517		 	(64,301)	 	57,850	
     
Taxation  (1,003,693)  (851,917)  (772,240)  (137,841)  (129,286)
     
Profit/(loss)	for	the	year	 	1,615,003		 	1,424,088		 	1,312,277		 	(202,142)	 	(71,436)
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The Secretary
Total Kenya Limited
P.O. Box  30736 - 00100
Nairobi.

I/WE      

OF        
    
Being a member(s) of the above Company, hereby appoint:

OF        
    
Whom failing        
   
OF        
    
or failing him, the Chairman of the Meeting, my/our proxy, to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of 
the Company to be held on Friday, 10th June 2016 and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness our/my hand this                                                                                day of                                                                             2016

Signed Signed    
 
Note: 

1)  In accordance to the with Section 298 of the Companies Act, 2015, a Member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a 
proxy to attend, to speak and to vote on his/her behalf and a proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2)  In the case of a member being a Limited Company this form must be completed under its common seal or under the hand of an 
officer or attorney duly authorised in writing.

3)  Proxy Forms must be in the hands of either the Secretary, John Maonga, Maonga Ndonye Associates, Jadala Place, Third Floor, 
P O Box 73248, 00200 Nairobi, email: jmaonga@maongandonye.com or the Company’s Shares Registrars, Comprite Kenya 
Limited, Crescent Business Centre, 2nd Floor, Off Parklands Road, Nairobi not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the 
meeting or any adjournment thereof.
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Marketing & Services
Total Kenya Limited 
Regal Plaza, Limuru Road,
P.O. Box 30736, 00100 Nairobi.
Tel: (+254-20) 289 7000
Email: customerservice@total.co.ke

Energy drives progress where it is readily available. Two of the biggest

challenges in building a responsible energy future are ensuring access for all

and using energy wisely.

This is the environment in which we conduct our business. With operations

in more than 130 countries, we are a leading international oil and gas company.

We produce, refine and market oil, manufacture petrochemicals. We are also

a world-class natural gas operator and rank second in solar energy with

SunPower. Demonstrating their commitment to better energy, our 36,000

employees help supply our customers worldwide with safer, cleaner, more

efficient and more innovative products that are accessible to as many people as

possible. We work alongside our stakeholders to ensure that our operations

consistently deliver economic, social and environmental benefits.


